
 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 8 March 2005 - 7:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham 

 
Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair); Councillor C Geddes (Deputy Chair); 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor H J Collins, Councillor 
S Kallar, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor M E McKenzie, Councillor L A Smith 
and Councillor T G W Wade 
 
Declaration of Members Interest: In accordance with Article 1, Paragraph 12 of the 
Constitution, Members are asked to declare any direct/indirect financial or other 
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting  
 
 
25.02.05    Rob Whiteman 
        Chief Executive 
 
 
 

Contact Officer: Alan Dawson 
Tel. 020 8227 2348 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: alan.dawson@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 22 

February 2005 (circulated separately)   
 
Business Items  

 
Public Items 3 to 5 and Private Items 15 to 19 are business items.  The Chair will 
move that these be agreed without discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a 
specific point. 
 
Any discussion of a Private Business Item will take place after the exclusion of the 
public and press.  

 
3. London Thames Gateway Development Corporation: Proposed Planning 

Protocol and Service Level Agreement (Pages 1 - 22)  
 



 

4. Acquisition Programme To Support Regeneration and Empty Homes 
Initiatives (Pages 23 - 27)  

 
5. Regenerating the Local Economy Cross-Cutting Best Value Review: Third 

Quarterly Progress Report on Implementation of the Improvement Plan 
(Pages 29 - 44)  

 
Discussion Items  

 
6. Housing Futures: Stock Option Appraisal (Pages 45 - 61)  
 
7. More Choice in Lettings (Pages 63 - 67)  
 
8. Disposals at UnderValue: Corporate Procedure (Pages 69 - 73)  
 
9. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
10. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972).   

 
Discussion Items  

 
11. Capital Works Roofing Programme to Low Rise Dwellings - Appointment 

of Contractor (Pages 75 - 83)  
 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraphs 7, 8 and 9)  

 
12. Progress Update on the Harts Lane and Whiting Avenue Estates Land 

Quality Inspection (Pages 85 - 89)  
 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraph 8)  

 
13. New Dagenham Library and Customer First Centre (to follow)   
 
 Concerns a land acquisition matter (paragraph 9)  

 
14. Redevelopment Options for Goresbrook Parade (to follow)   
 
 Concerns a land acquisition matter (paragraph 9)  

 
 



 

Business Items  
 

15. Thames Accord Limited Review for 2003/04 (Pages 91 - 95)  
 
 Concerns the business affairs of a third party (paragraph 7   

 
16. Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 - Admission 

Agreement (Pages 97 - 99)  
 
 Concerns the business affairs of a third party (paragraph 7)  

 
17. Contract for the Procurement and Management of Temporary 

Accommodation Within the Private Sector Leasing Scheme (Pages 101 - 
105)  

 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraph 9)  

 
18. Re-Tendering  for the Banking Contract (Pages 107 - 109)  
 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraph 8)  

 
19. City Learning Centre (CLC) Extension at Eastbrook School (Pages 111 - 

113)  
 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraphs 8 and 9)  

 
20. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

8 MARCH 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
 
LONDON THAMES GATEWAY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION: 
PROPOSED PLANNING PROTOCOL AND SERVICE LEVEL 
AGREEMENT 

FOR 
DECISION 

This issue is of a strategic nature and the decision is reserved to the Executive by the 
Scheme of Delegation.  
 
Summary 
 
The London Thames Gateway Development Corporation (the Urban Development 
Corporation) was established on 25 June 2004.   The Local Government Planning and 
Land Act empowers the First Secretary of State to provide by Order for an Urban 
Development Corporation (UDC) to be the local planning authority for all or any part of its 
area.  The Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) has indicated that such an Order 
will be made in the Spring of 2005.  
 
This will mean that the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham will cease to be the 
Development Control Authority for certain specified types of development within the UDC 
boundary.  However, Ministers have also indicated that they wish to see the UDC work 
closely with local planning authorities and the Greater London Authority (GLA) to ensure 
successful delivery.  To this end, Officers have been negotiating with the ODPM, on behalf 
of the UDC, to agree a protocol which defines the categories of development to be subject 
to control by the UDC and a system by which planning applications for these types of 
development are processed by the Council’s Planning staff.   
 
It is proposed that delivery of the Protocol will be subject to a Service Level Agreement 
(SLA) between the Council and the UDC.  This report highlights the key issues contained 
in the Protocol and SLA and recommends acceptance of the two documents.   
 
A draft of the proposed Planning Protocol and Outline Service Level Agreement with the 
UDC is also attached as Appendices A and B for reference. 
 
Wards Affected – Abbey, Gascoigne, Thames, River 
 
Recommendation 
 
1)  The Executive is recommended to agree to the proposed Planning Protocol as a 

means of establishing a working relationship with The London Thames Gateway 
Development Corporation (the Urban Development Corporation (UDC) ) on 
planning matters. 

 
2)  The Executive is recommended to authorise the Director of Regeneration and 

Environment to conclude negotiations on the draft Service Level Agreement in line 
with the Charging Policy Commission.  This should be fully funded by the by the 
UDC. The financial position at paragraph 7.1 should be noted 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



Reason 
 
To assist the Council achieve its Community Priorities of “Regenerating the Local 
Economy” and “Improving Health Housing and Social Care”. 
 
Contact: 
Peter Wright  Head of Planning   Tel: 020 – 8227 - 3900 
   and Transportation   Fax: 020 8227 3902 
        Minicom: 020 8227 3040 
        E-mail: peter.wright@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
1. Background 
  
1.1 The London Thames Gateway Development Corporation (the UDC) was established 

on 25 June 2004.  The Local Government, Planning and Land Act (1980) enables a 
UDC to be a Local Planning Authority.  It is expected that an Order bestowing that 
responsibility on the UDC will be laid before Parliament early this year.  At the 
moment it is believed that the Planning Order will be laid before Parliament in 
February 2005, with the intention of the UDC taking on its new responsibilities in 
April 2005, once staff are in place.  ODPM Ministers will need to be satisfied that 
suitable arrangements are in place for the UDC to undertake Development Control 
responsibilities successfully.  Ministers have already indicated that they expect close 
working with partner authorities on planning matters.  The UDC does not have 
statutory ‘plan-making powers’. 

  
1.2 Ministers have also made it clear that they expect the UDC to concern itself 

primarily with the larger, ‘strategic’ planning applications, not to interfere with the 
Mayor of London’s powers, and not to exclude boroughs from the planning process. 

  
1.3 The intention is, therefore, that the Planning Order will provide for the UDC to be 

responsible only for certain sizes and types of planning application.  Furthermore, it 
is not currently the intention that the UDC would take on responsibility for the areas 
covered by the recently approved outline Planning Permissions for the Olympics 
and Stratford City. 

  
1.4 Discussions have been progressing with the UDC for some months now, and 

general agreement is emerging on roles and responsibilities.  Fundamental to this is 
establishing the thresholds above which planning applications will be determined by 
the UDC and the specific arrangements for how those cases will be handled. 

 
2. The Planning Protocol 
  
2.1 Officers from five of the London boroughs within the UDC boundary and ODPM 

have drawn up a draft ‘Planning Protocol’, which sets out the proposed manner in 
which the Development Control powers could be undertaken in the Corporation’s 
area.  It is influenced by several key factors including; 

  
 • the intention to harness skills and resources available to the area; 
 •  limited size of the Corporation’s staffing complement; 
 • continuing development of borough capacity; 
 • avoiding replication of existing tested consultative systems; 
 • the UDC’s focus on larger schemes; 

Page 2



 • non interference with the Mayor of London’s powers; 
  
2.2 The Protocol therefore sets out, in ‘non-contractual’ terms how this would work in 

practice. 
  
2.3 The intention is that, subject to the Executive’s agreement, the Protocol will form 

the basis of a Service Level Agreement, or contract, between the UDC and partner 
authorities.  That agreement will set out specific performance standards for the 
boroughs and the UDC for each relevant step of the application process and other 
elements of the planning service covered by the agreement. 

  
2.4 ‘Heads of Terms’ for such an agreement are currently being drawn up in 

consultation with the UDC and other London boroughs, and this work will be 
accelerated once the principles set out in the draft Protocol have been endorsed by 
the UDC Board and constituent planning authorities. 

  
2.5 It is very likely that there will need to be a range of detailed adjustments as specific 

elements of the protocol are embodied in the agreement.  Indeed, it is unlikely that 
the SLA will be fully agreed until satisfactorily negotiated with the UDC’s Director of 
Planning.  The Executive is asked to delegate authority to the Director of 
Regeneration and Environment to agree the final wording of the SLA.  

  
3. The Proposed Thresholds 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Planning Protocol proposes that the UDC will assume responsibility for 
determining planning applications, within its boundary, for the following types of 
development. 
 
• Provision of more than 50 houses, flats, or houses and flats ("dwellings"). 
 
• Provision of any development that occupies more than one hectare. 
 
• Development (other than development solely for dwellings) or change of use 

with a total floor space of more than 2,500 square metres. 
 
• Mining operations.  
 
• Waste development installations. 
 
• Electricity generating installations above 0.5 kw. 
 
• Developments to provide an aircraft runway, a heliport (including a floating 

heliport or a helipad on a building), [an air passenger terminal at an airport], a 
railway station, a tramway, an underground, surface or elevated railway or 
cable car, a bus or coach station, a crossing over or under the River Thames, a 
passenger pier on the River Thames. 

 
• The loss of 20 dwellings, irrespective of whether any proposed new 

development would entail the provision of new dwellings. 
 
• Development which is likely to prejudice the use as a playing field of more than 

one hectare of land which is used as a playing field, or has at any time in the 

Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

last five years before the making of the application been used as a playing field.
 
• Development on land allocated as Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land in the 

development plan which would involve the construction of a building with a floor 
space of more than 500 square metres or a material change in the use of such 
a building. 

 
• Development for a use, other than residential use, which includes the provision 

of more than 50 car parking spaces in connection with that use. 
 

3.2 
 
 

Where a proposed development forms part of a more substantial scheme, 
consideration of whether the thresholds above have been exceeded will take into 
account other development on the same land or adjoining land where; 
 
• an application for planning permission has been made but not finally 

determined; and / or 
 
• where planning permission has been granted within the last five years; and / or  

where the development has been substantially completed within the previous 
five years. 

  
4. Process 
  
4.1 
 

Details of the proposed process by which Council Officers handle planning 
applications on behalf of the UDC are contained in the draft Protocol (Appendix A).  
In summary, however, the application will be received and registered by the 
Council.  Processing of the application will be the same as for Council applications, 
except that a high level of co-operation and discussion will be required between 
Council Officers, the GLA and the UDC.  Ultimately, a report will be prepared by 
the Council’s Head of Planning and Transportation for submission to and 
agreement by the UDC’s Director of Planning.  The application will then be 
submitted to the UDC’s Planning Board or dealt with under suitable delegated 
powers. 
 

4.2 It is to be hoped that, by close co-operation, there will not be a disagreement 
between the Council and the UDC over planning recommendations.  However, in 
the event of a dispute, the UDC will have pre-eminence.  

  
5. Consultation with Other Agencies   
  
5.1 Consultation with neighbours and Statutory Undertakers will be undertaken by the 

Council in the normal manner, as will consultation with Ward Councillors.  The 
UDC does not intend, however, for the Council itself to be a consultee.  In effect 
there will be no referral to the Council’s Development Control Board for a formal 
view on applications.  It must be recognised that, in this respect, Planning Officers 
are being asked to act first as agents for the UDC and second as Council Officers.  
However, it is suggested that the report of the Head of Planning and 
Transportation could be referred to and agreed by the Lead Member for 
Regeneration in discussion with the Chair of the Development Control Board.  

  

Page 4



 
6. Legal Implications 
  
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The draft protocol and SLA have been reviewed by the law firm of Denton Wilde 
Sapte. They advise that there are a number of issues which follow from the 
proposed arrangements and the Council should be aware of the implications.  A 
note of these is given below: 
 
Loss of Control 
 
For the next five or ten years the Council will lose the power to decide planning 
applications which fall within the Development Corporation's remit.  This will be the 
case even though it will be the Borough's own staff that will be processing the 
applications.  Although this might at times be frustrating for the Council, it must be 
appreciated from the outset that this is the case and Councillors should fully 
understand this. 
 
Type of Applications  
 
Some of the classes of planning applications which will now fall to be decided by 
the Development Corporation within its area are for kinds of development which 
might be potentially politically sensitive locally, e.g. installations for treating, 
keeping, processing or disposing of refuse or waste materials.  Electricity 
generating installations are also included, as are developments involving transport 
infrastructure. 
 
Council's Own Development 
 
Where the Council itself brings forward a development proposal which falls within 
the Development Corporation's area and remit the decision on the application will 
not now be made by the Council.  Officers are not aware that there are any such 
applications in prospect. 
 
Staff Issues and Officers' Liability 
 
The SLA requires that each Council set up a dedicated team of officers to work on 
Development Corporation development control work, supported by legal advice 
from the Borough's Head of Legal Services.  Management of that team will be by 
the individual Council.  All of these officers will remain in the employment of the 
individual Borough and there will be no transfer of staff under the TUPE legislation. 
 
LBBD staff members processing applications for the Development Corporation will 
still be performing a local authority function; they will be employed by LBBD and 
will be fulfilling the role of the local authority under the SLA.  As such, they should 
be able to benefit from the usual indemnities for local authority officers, even 
though they are involved in processing planning applications for the Development 
Corporation. 
 
The draft SLA requires that staff engaged in the provision of advice or services to 
the Development Corporation shall in so doing "give priority to the interests" of the 
Development Corporation.  This would not be proper since it would put employees 
at odds with the Borough.  As this is really meant to be a statement about 

Page 5



 resources, it would be better that the word "interests" by replaced by "work".  
 

6.1.6 Cooperation with other Boroughs 
 
The Protocol does not deal with ensuring that there is uniformity of approach 
across the Development Corporation's area or a consistent level of service under 
the six boroughs' SLAs.  It would seem sensible to have an arrangement for 
regular (perhaps six-monthly or quarterly) meetings involving all the relevant 
boroughs 

  
7. Financial Implications 
  
7.1 The emergence of the UDC and potential working arrangements have been known 

for some time.  As such, proposals for handling planning applications on behalf of 
the UDC were included in the restructure incorporated in the Best Value review of 
Regeneration.  Assumptions were made that three additional posts would be 
required and these were incorporated into the restructure.  It was also assumed 
that these posts would be funded to an estimated value of £50,000, at least in the 
short-term, by the UDC.  Negotiations have yet to commence on this subject, 
however, early indications are that the UDC will be unwilling to fund additional 
posts.  If the Council is still committed to support the UDC in this way and we are 
unable to get the UDC to fully fund the posts, any shortfall will need to be funded 
from other Council resources which may include Planning Delivery Grant so 
preventing those funds being used for other purposes. Planning Delivery Grant, 
has been extended for the next four years. 

  
8 Conclusion 
  
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 

The UDC was established on 25 June 2004.  The Local Government Planning and 
Land Act empowers the First Secretary of State to provide by Order for a UDC to 
be the local planning authority for all or any part of its area.  ODPM have indicated 
that such an Order will be made in the Spring of 2005.  This will mean that the 
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham will cease to be the Development 
Control Authority for certain specified types of development within the UDC 
boundary.  
 

8.2 
 

However, Ministers have also indicated that they wish to see the UDC work closely 
with Local Planning Authorities and the GLA to ensure successful delivery.  To this 
end, Officers have been negotiating with the ODPM, on behalf of the UDC, to 
agree a Protocol which defines the categories of development to be subject to 
control by the UDC and a system by which planning applications for these types of 
development are processed by Council Planning staff.  
 

8.3 
 
 
 

It is proposed that delivery of the protocol will be subject to a service level 
agreement (SLA) between the Council and the UDC.  The draft planning protocol 
and SLA are included in Appendices A and B.  It is recommended that the 
Executive agree to the terms outlined in the protocol and SLA, recognising the key 
issues raised in this report.  
 

Page 6



 
9 Consultation 

Lead Members 
The following Lead Members have been advised on the proposals 
Leader’s Portfolio, Councillor Fairbrass 
Regeneration, Councillor Kallar 
 
The following officer has also been consulted and has agreed the report. 
 
David Waller, Interim Head of Finance, DRE 
 

 
Background Papers; None 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Version 2 October 04 1

Appendix A 
 

Version 2, dated 10/04 
London Thames Gateway Development Corporation and London Boroughs 

 
Draft Planning Protocol in respect of provision of planning services to 
Thames Gateway London Development Corporation. 
 
[NB Subject to legal advice and comment/agreement by ODPM] 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The London Thames Gateway Development Corporation ("the Corporation") was 
established on 25 June 2004, following Parliamentary approval of the  London 
Thames Gateway Development Corporation (Area and Constitution) Order. 
 
The Local Government, Planning and Land Act empowers the First Secretary of 
State to provide by Order for a UDC to be the local planning authority for the 
whole or any part of its area (s.149).   
 
The Office of the Deputy Prime Minister has indicated that Ministers intend to 
make such an Order in respect of the Corporation, subject to their being content 
that robust arrangements are in place for the exercise by the Corporation of its 
planning powers.  Ministers have also indicated that they expect the Corporation 
to work closely with Boroughs within its area and with the Greater London 
Authority to ensure their successful delivery. 
 
This protocol sets out how Corporation planning powers will be exercised, and 
the respective roles of the Corporation, the Boroughs and the GLA in facilitating 
this. 
 
[It has been considered and adopted by the Corporation Board, the Planning 
Committees of LB Barking and Dagenham, [LB Waltham Forest,] LB Hackney, 
LB Havering, LB Newham, LB Tower Hamlets and the office of the Mayor of 
London.] 
 
2. Powers and Objectives 
 
The statutory objective and powers of a UDC are set out in section 136 of the 
Local Government, Planning and Land Act 1980. A UDC's objective is to secure 
the regeneration of its area. This is to be achieved in particular through: 
 

• Bringing land and buildings into effective use; 
• Encouraging the development of existing and new industry and 

commerce; 
• Creating an attractive environment; and 

Page 9



Version 2 October 04 2

• Ensuring that housing and social facilities are available to encourage 
people to live and work in the area. 

 
 
 
For the purpose of achieving the regeneration of its area, a UDC may: 
 
• Acquire, hold, manage, reclaim and dispose of land and other property; 
• Carry out building and other operations; 
• Seek to ensure the provision of water, electricity, gas, sewerage and other 

services; 
• Carry on any business or undertaking for the purposes of regenerating its 

area; and 
• Generally do anything necessary or expedient for this purpose, or for 

purposes incidental to those purposes. 
 
The Local Government, Planning and Land Act empowers the First Secretary of 
State to provide by Order for a UDC to be the local planning authority for the 
whole or any part of its area (s.149). The legislation also empowers the First 
Secretary of State to confine the scope of the Order to specified purposes of Part 
III of the Town and Country Planning Act (control over development), and to 
certain kinds of development. 
 
Ministers have confirmed that they intend to provide by Order for the Corporation 
to be the local planning authority for its area (excluding Olympics and Stratford 
City developments as currently constituted) but only for applications relevant to 
its purpose - defined as large-scale and strategic developments only.  [Section 7 
of this document sets out the levels at which these thresholds are likely to be 
set.] 
 
The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 enables Urban Development 
Corporation Boards to formally delegate planning decisions to committees, sub-
committees and officers. Under the previous legislation, UDC Boards are 
responsible for all planning decisions. The proposed change will bring UDCs into 
line with other local planning authorities. 
 
The legislation is not prescriptive about the number of committees or sub-
committees that a UDC can establish. Nor does it set out at what level the 
delegations have to be made. It does, however, empower UDC Boards to co-opt 
non-Board members onto the committees and sub-committees - subject to 
receiving approval from the First Secretary of State. The legislation is not 
prescriptive about the grounds for co-opting outsiders onto the committee. In its 
submission to the Secretary of State, the Board would need to explain why the 
co-optees involvement would improve decision-making. 
   
 

Page 10



Version 2 October 04 3

 
 
3. The Mayor's Powers 
 
Under the Town and Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order, the Mayor of 
London has the power to direct refusal of applications of strategic importance. 
These powers will not be directly affected by the UDC proposals. The threshold 
for defining an application as strategic is likely to be set at a lower level for the 
Corporation than for the Mayor, as what is strategic in the context of London may 
differ in scale from what is strategic at the more local level at which the 
Corporation will operate. 
 
4. The Protocol 
 
The justification for the transfer of development control powers in respect of 
strategic applications is to facilitate the co-ordination of land assembly and 
infrastructure provision with development agreements and statutory planning 
processes, within the designated UDC area. This transfer of powers is not 
intended to exclude Boroughs from the planning process: it is intended that the 
Corporation should work in close partnership with the Boroughs, Mayor and GLA 
in the exercise of all its powers and functions.  
 
The manner of working in this partnership arrangement in respect of Corporation 
planning powers is set out in this Protocol, for which there is an emerging 
consensus. [which has been considered and agreed by the Corporation Board, 
the Planning Committees of LB Barking and Dagenham, [LB Waltham Forest,] 
LB Hackney, LB Havering, LB Newham, LB Tower Hamlets and the office of the 
Mayor of London]. 
 
The specific responsibilities of parties will be set out in Service Level 
Agreements[Contracts]between the Corporation and partner 
authorities.[example to be attached]. 
 
Subject to the agreement of Ministers, where necessary the provisions of this 
protocol will be reflected in the Planning Order granting the Corporation its 
planning powers. 
 
5. Plan Making Powers 
 
Applications for planning permission in the designated area will be determined 
in conformity with UDPs (or successor documents) whose preparation and 
maintenance will remain the responsibility of Borough Councils in line with 
S54a of the Planning Act. UDPs (and successor documents) have to be in 
general conformity with the London Plan. The Borough Councils, the Corporation 
and the GLA will jointly consider whether there is a need to promote any 
amendments to UDPs (and successor documents) within the Corporation's 

Page 11



Version 2 October 04 4

designated area to reflect the provisions of the Corporation's Strategic 
Regeneration Framework.  
 
The Corporation will be consulted on all proposed amendments to UDPs/LDFs; 
and revisions to LDFs/UDPs will have regard to the provisions of the 
Corporations Strategic Regeneration Framework(s). 
 
Sub Regional Planning Guidance will be Supplementary Planning Guidance to 
the London Plan. A draft of Sub Regional Planning Guidance for East London 
is expected in [November 2004]. It will be a material planning consideration to 
be taken into account in determining planning applications and in drafting 
UDPs and successor documents. 
 
Additional Supplementary Planning Guidance may be prepared jointly by the 
Corporation, the GLA and the Borough(s) for designated areas within the UDC 
boundary, for the approval of the Mayor and/or Borough Councils following 
consultation. 
 
Where any party wishes to promote development which is not in accordance 
with the UDP (or successor documents) or the London Plan, this will be 
treated as a departure. Within the spirit of this protocol, there will be full 
consultation between the Corporation, the GLA and the Borough(s) on the 
material planning considerations relevant to departure proposals. 
 
6. Development Control  
 
Responsibility for determining strategic applications in the designated area will 
pass to the Corporation. Responsibility for all other applications will remain with 
the Boroughs. 
 
The thresholds at which a development is considered strategic will be 
established in the Planning Order.  Proposed thresholds are set out at section 7 
of this protocol. 
 
Outline arrangements for the consideration of strategic applications are set out at 
section 8 of this protocol.  A service level agreement/contract will be established 
between the Corporation and each existing local planning authority.  
 
The Corporation will be informed of all applications received by the Boroughs in 
the designated area. Generally it is expected that most applications will continue 
to be determined by Boroughs. The boroughs will identify any significant 
applications below the thresholds upon which the Corporation is likely to wish to 
make observations. 
 
 
 

Page 12



Version 2 October 04 5

 
 
7. Thresholds: Strategic Applications 
 
The detailed definition of "large-scale and strategic" has been derived from the  
Town and Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2000. For the purposes of 
this draft, the thresholds at which Mayoral powers come into operation are  
shown in bold. These  are generally higher than those proposed for the 
Corporation, reflecting the sub-regional level at which the Corporation is 
operating. 
 

• Provision of more than [500/50] houses, flats, or houses and flats 
("dwellings"); 

• Provision of any development that occupies more than [10/1] hectares; 
• Development (other than development solely for dwellings) or change of 

use with a total floorspace of more than [15,000/2,500] square metres; 
•  Development more than [30/25] metres high; 
• Mining operations.  
• Waste development installations.  
• Electricity generating installations above [ kw] tba 
• Developments to provide an aircraft runway, a heliport (including a floating 

heliport or a helipad on a building), [an air passenger terminal at an 
airport], a railway station, a tramway, an underground, surface or elevated 
railway or cable car, a bus or coach station, a crossing over or under the 
River Thames, a passenger pier on the River Thames. 

• The loss of [200/20] dwellings, irrespective of whether any proposed new 
development would entail the provision of new dwellings; 

• Development which is likely to prejudice the use as a playing field of more 
than [2/1] hectares of land which is used as a playing field, or has at any 
time in the last five years before the making of the application been used 
as a playing field; 

• Development on land allocated as Green Belt or [Metropolitan Open Land] 
in the development plan which would involve the construction of a building 
with a floorspace of more than [1000/500] square metres or a material 
change in the use of such a building; 

• Development for a use, other than residential use, which includes the 
provision of more than [200/50] car parking spaces in connection with that 
use. 

 
Where a proposed development forms part of a more substantial scheme, 
consideration of whether the thresholds above have been exceeded will take into 
account other development on the same land or adjoining land where: 
• an application for planning permission has been made but not finally 

determined; and/or 
•  where planning permission has been granted within the last five years; 

and/or 

Page 13



Version 2 October 04 6

•  where the development has been substantially completed within the previous 
five years. 

8. Process 
 
The process for handling planning applications in the UDC area is based on 
principles of partnership working between the local authorities and the 
Corporation. There is consequently shared responsibility for delivery of the 
planning service and it will be in all parties interests to achieve an effective 
operation of that service.  Specific responsibilities will be set out in Service Level 
Agreements[contracts]; nevertheless this protocol anticipates good flow of 
information between partners over and above any contractual obligations. 
 
 Pre-Application Discussions 
 
In the case of major or strategically significant developments, (whether or not 
they fall within the thresholds set out in the Planning Order) the Corporation, the 
Borough Council or Councils and the GLA will notify each other immediately 
of all approaches received for prospective developments. The Corporation, the 
Borough(s), and the GLA will work closely together and with developers in pre 
application discussions and public consultation so that by the time of submission 
of an application the principal issues are well known. By then their general 
conformity or otherwise with statutory plans will be understood. A decision will be 
taken as to whether an application will be determined by the Borough(s) or the 
Corporation. In cases where the final decision is to be taken by the UDC this will 
be made clear to developers, and guidance given to them will reflect the UDC 
Board's position. 
 
 Procedure on Receipt of All Planning Applications in the Designated Area 
 
Applicants will make applications to the Council; i.e., all applications will be 
made through the Council. 
 
The Corporation will be notified of all planning applications. 
 
Responsibility for maintaining the planning register will remain with the Council.  
 
Public consultation will be carried out by the Council acting in consultation 
with the Corporation's Director of Planning in accordance with a detailed protocol 
to be drawn up (based on established Borough practice, but taking into account 
Corporation policy on public consultation). 
 
A weekly meeting will be held involving the Corporation and planners from each 
relevant Borough to track progress of applications, scrutinise new applications 
and confirm those applications which the Corporation will determine. The GLA 
will be invited to these weekly meetings. 
 

Page 14



Version 2 October 04 7

Cases for decision by the Borough will then be progressed in the usual way. 
including delegation to officers where appropriate. Cases for decision by the 
Corporation will be progressed as set out below. 
 
 Procedure for Planning Applications to be decided by the Corporation 
 
For categories of application to be decided by the Corporation the statutory 
responsibility for taking decisions passes to the Corporation.  The Corporation 
will contract (SLA) with each Council so that the Council will process the 
application in the following manner: 
 
1. Applicants will be notified that their application will be determined by the 

Corporation 
 
2. Negotiations with developers will be carried out through a partnership of 
 the Corporation, the GLA, and the Council or Councils concerned. 
 
3.  A single report prepared by the Borough's Head of Planning and 

containing a recommendation will go to the Corporation's Director of 
Planning.  The Borough's Head of Planning should consult the Corporation 
Director of Planning on the proposed timing and content of the report. 

 
4. The Director of Planning will consider the report and its recommendation.  

Where he/she is content with the report and recommendation, he/she will 
put the report to the Corporation Board. 

 
5. Where the Director of Planning is not content with the recommendation, 

he/she may append a further report to the case before presenting it to the 
Corporation Board.  The report should note the dissenting views of the 
Borough Head of Planning.  

 
 [The spirit of this protocol is that the parties should use their best 
 endeavours to reach agreement as to timing and recommendation so that 
 disagreement would be expected to be rare.] 
 
 [Where the Borough Planning Committee has a view this will be reported    
 to the Board as a consultee.]  
 
6. If the application is above the thresholds for reference to the Mayor of 
 London, then the Borough would notify the Mayor in accordance with the 
 Town and Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2000. The Borough 
 would also advise that the application had been transferred to the 
 Corporation. If the Mayor wished to use his powers to direct refusal for 
 applications transferred to the Corporation, he would do so in accordance 
 with his normal procedure. 
 

Page 15



Version 2 October 04 8

7. Planning permission will be issued by the Corporation, and entered [by the 
 Borough - see above] on the Planning Register(s). Notification of the 
 decision to relevant third parties will be carried out by the Borough in 
 accordance with their usual practice. 
 
8. Decisions will be taken in conformity with relevant development plans, 
 including the London Plan and UDP's (or successor documents). The Sub 
 Regional Development Framework, relevant supplementary planning 
 guidance [and the Corporation's Strategic Regeneration Framework] will 
 be material planning considerations to be taken into account. 
 
 Legal Agreements 
 
Legal agreements will be drawn up between the applicant and the Corporation in 
consultation with the Borough and the GLA. The views of the Borough and the 
GLA will be given full consideration, regarding the matters which ought to be 
included in legal agreements, including physical, economic, environmental and 
community requirements. The Corporation will however be ultimately responsible 
for the content of legal agreements. 
 
 Appeals 
 
Appeals against a decision of the Corporation will be administered by the 
Corporation's Head of Planning in partnership with relevant case officer(s) in the 
Borough(s). Responsibility for handling the appeal will lie with the Corporation. 
 
 Fees 
 
Planning fees will in all areas be payable to the Borough. 
 
 Enforcement 
 
Enforcement responsibilities, including the enforcement of planning agreements, 
remains the responsibility of the Boroughs.  
 
 Listed Buildings/Conservation Areas 
 
Advice to be provided by Boroughs. Thresholds to apply. 
 
 Consultation 
 
Consultation on planning all applications will be the Borough Councils 
responsibility. The relevant local authority's Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI) will apply to the area covered by the Corporation unless specified 
otherwise by the Secretary of State. The Corporation is not required to produce 
anything equivalent to an SCI. However the Corporation does have to produce a 

Page 16



Version 2 October 04 9

Code of Consultation with the relevant local authority when exercising planning 
powers; this is integral to this protocol and the SLA.  
 
  
IT 
 
[to be discussed: compatibility of existing systems/new UDC systems, E-
govt.] 
 
 Costs of the Service  
 
Boroughs will retain planning fees. 
  
 Performance/PS1/2 Returns 
 
Completed by boroughs as at present. As part of the protocol provision will be 
made in the SLA for performance standards to be met by the Boroughs and the 
Corporation in the exercise of their joint powers, particularly in respect of the 
timescales of the decision-making process. The GLA will be invited to enter into a 
similar protocol in relation to the exercise of the Mayor's planning powers. 
 
 Evaluation 
 
A process for joint evaluation of the process will be prepared requiring regular 
review and report to the Secretary of State.  
 
 Sub-committee(s) 
 
[UDC Board will wish to consider establishing a Planning Committee to consider 
planning applications, as provided for in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act.  It may wish to consider in due course whether it would be appropriate to 
invite Borough members to sit on the Committee as co-optees for the purposes 
of decisions relevant to their areas.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Version 2 October 04 10

 
 

Page 18



Appendix B 
 

DRAFT v1 
OUTLINE SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT IN RESPECT OF PROVISION OF 
PLANNING SERVICE TO LONDON THAMES GATEWAY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 
 
KEY ELEMENTS 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
It has been agreed that the Local Authorities (LA) will provide services to the 
London Thames Gateway Development Corporation (UDC) to enable it to 
perform its statutory function as local planning authority for its designated area.  
 
In the main this will entail the administration of development control procedures 
for major applications, including planning enforcement where necessary.   
 
Major applications are those specified in the Planning Functions Order. 
 
This document sets out the arrangements by which the LA will provide, on an 
agency basis, a planning service to the UDC. The agreement should be 
reviewed at the end of the UDC's first year of operation.  
 
2. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
 
The Local Authority will provide services on behalf of the UDC in relation to the 
full range of planning activities as specified in the Town and Country Planning 
Acts and specified in the London Thames Gateway Development Corporation 
(Planning Functions) Order 2005. 
 
This will include: 
 

(i) Processing of planning applications (including other applications 
such as for approval of reserved matters, discharge of conditions, 
listed building consent advertisement consent, hazardous 
substances consent, etc.); 

 
(ii) Provision of professional planning and legal advice on 

development control matters; 
 

(iii) Processing of planning and enforcement appeals; 
 

(iv) Enforcement of planning legislation; 
 

(v) Monitoring of performance levels and service delivery; 
 

(vi) Provision of advice on planning policy/legislative issues, including 
input to the preparation of urban design studies, development 

Page 19



frameworks and briefs, tree preservation orders and reports on 
conservation/listed building matters. 

 
3. ORGANISATION 

The Local Authority will provide a dedicated team of officers (all to be suitable 
qualified and experienced) to work on UDC development control work, and line 
management responsibility for its work will rest with the LA.  The Group will also 
be supported in relation to legal advice and services by LA's Head of Legal 
Services. 
 
Planning Registers, together with other relevant planning documents, will be 
held at the local authority and be available for inspection in the usual way.  
 
A weekly list of applications received in the UDC area will be produced and 
supplied to the Corporation. 
 
An LA officer (a member of the dedicated team or the Head of Planning) will 
attend a weekly liaison meeting with UDC.  
 
Staff engaged in the provision of advice or services to the UDC in accordance 
with this Agreement shall in so doing give priority to the interests of the UDC.   
 
On particular matters there may be conflict between the respective interests or 
views of the UDC and local authority, so that it will be inappropriate for the LA to 
provide services to the UDC on such a matter. In such a case the UDC reserves 
the right to obtain advice or services other than from the LA, and the LA 
reserves the right not to provide advice or services to the UDC.  
 
4. PROCESS 
In conjunction with UDC officers, LA will provide professional planning advice to 
developers and members of the public on the whole range of planning issues as 
they arise within the UDC area.  This will include pre-application discussions 
with persons considering development and negotiations in respect of submitted 
planning applications, where amendments are required to accord with DC 
policies and objectives.  
 
For applications that fall to the UDC for determination, LA will, on behalf of the 
UDC, validate, register and acknowledge the receipt of all planning applications 
submitted within the UDC area.  
 
In respect of all applications submitted LA will undertake all the necessary 
consultation in accordance with the relevant legislative requirements and the 
policies and practices adopted by the LA and UDC.  
 
LA will provide reports on all applications (see threshold clause….) for planning 
consent (and other related applications) and breaches of planning control, in a 
format to be agreed with the UDC.  
 

Page 20



LA will prepare and despatch a decision notice on UDC headed paper and 
signed by the UDC in respect of all planning and other applications. 
 
The  LA Head of Planning will be available to attend meetings of the UDC Board 
to present reports on planning matters and to provide professional planning 
advice 
 
 
 
APPEALS 
 
LA will, on behalf of the UDC, administer all appeals against planning decisions 
and other development control action authorised by the UDC.  
 
Where it is agreed that an appeal should proceed on the basis of either written 
representations or an informal hearing, LA will, in consultation with UDC 
officers, prepare and submit/present a statement on behalf of the UDC. 
 
Where an appeal is to be determined by means of a public local inquiry, LA will 
consult with the UDC as to how the Corporation's case could most appropriately 
be presented.  
 
 
ENFORCEMENT 
 
LA will provide a planning inspection/enforcement service to the UDC.  
Development activity within the area (including condition compliance) will be 
monitored and any breaches of planning control, either observed directly or 
reported by way of complaint, will be investigated and pursued as appropriate.   
 
 
PERFORMANCE 
 
LA will undertake to carry out all planning functions for which it is responsible on 
behalf of the UDC expeditiously, efficiently and effectively.   
 
Performance measures will include: 
 
• a minimum of W%/X% applications determined within the eight-week/ 

thirteen week period.   
 
• All applications to be registered, validated, acknowledged and consultation 

letters despatched within Y working days of receipt; 
 
• All enquiries from developers/members of the public to be replied to within Z 

working days; 
 
• All decision notices to be despatched within one working day of the Board's 

decision; 
 

Page 21



• All appeals to be dealt with in accordance with the deadline set by the 
ODPM; 

 
• All complaints regarding breaches of planning control to be investigated and 

replied to within 21 working days; 
 
• Legislative changes to be reported to the DC Board within 21 working days 

of notification; comments on consultation papers as required. 
 
Quarterly reports on all these performance measures to the Board.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

8 MARCH 2005 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH 
 
 

ACQUISITION PROGRAMME TO SUPPORT 
REGENERATION AND EMPTY HOMES INITIATIVES 

FOR DECISION 

This report concerns the acquisition of property, which is a matter for the Executive to 
determine. 
 
Summary 
 
Authority is needed to purchase land and buildings when either there is no other way of 
improving it or bringing it back into use, if it is necessary for site assembly and/or the site 
represents a development opportunity for affordable housing or some other use which 
benefits the community. Most, if not all voluntary purchases will be by RSL’s but part 
funded by the Council in return for 100% nomination rights. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree that: 
 
Subject to (a) consultation with the Director of Finance and the Solicitor to the Council and 
Monitoring Officer and with the approval of the Lead Member for Housing, Health and Adult 
Care, and (b) a maximum of 10 properties per year being financed from existing budgets, 
that the Director of Housing and Health, or his nominated officer, be authorised to  
 

(i) proceed with the identification, negotiation and purchase of properties for 
acquisition; and 

(ii) if appropriate, to delegate the negotiation and purchase of properties to recognised 
partner RSL’s. 

 
Reasons 
 
To assist the Council to achieve its Community Priorities of “Improving Health, Housing and 
Social Care”, “Making Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, “Raising 
General Pride in the Borough” and “Regenerating the Local Economy”.  The proposal will 
also support funding the future and Community First aims. 
 
Financial implications 
 
• Acquisitions will be paid for from the existing capital programme for private sector 

housing which is currently limited to a total of £1.6m per year for the next three years. 
This means that the theoretical maximum number of purchases can not exceed 10 
properties. 

• The financial implications of each purchase will be decided on their merits on the basis 
that the Council will not face additional revenue costs in subsequent years. 

• Any purchase is a purely discretionary function and this programme need not conflict 
with other demands on the Capital budget for private sector housing. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 23



Contact Officer: 
Martin Davies  

 
Project Manager – 
Private Sector 

 
Tel: 020 8227 5079 
Fax: 020 8227 5799 
Minicom: 0208 227 5755 
E-mail: martin.davies@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Private Sector Housing Strategy was originally approved by the Executive on 

15th April 2003 (Minute 396).  Amendments were approved on 7th October 2003 
(Minute 140). The financial assistance element was approved by the Executive on 
26th October 2004 (Minute 168).  

 
1.2 The strategy states that for vacant properties “The Council will seek to work with 

owners, offering a wide range of assistance … Where co-operation is unsuccessful, 
the Council will, in appropriate cases, use its legal powers. These include enforced 
sale under the Law of Property Act 1925 and Compulsory Purchase.” 

 
1.3 The Private Sector Housing Strategy also states that “In appropriate cases of 

persistent and serious breaches of the law, the Council will consider the compulsory 
purchase of dwellings and their sale to other suitable landlords, including registered 
social landlords.” 

 
1.4 Barking and Dagenham is fortunate in having very few long term vacant private 

sector flats and houses. Some of them have been brought back into use by working 
with the owners. In 16 cases temporary social housing grant from the Housing 
Corporation was used as an inducement.  

 
1.5 The first batch of properties has yet to be confirmed. 
 
1.6 The regeneration work in the Home Improvement Zones (currently Broad Street and 

Fanshawe Avenue) often involves trying to improve difficult properties with complex 
problems which owners (if they can be identified) are unwilling or unable to resolve. 
Purchase of such properties may well be necessary in order both to resolve the 
problems and to make other improvements in the area possible and/or sustainable. 

 
1.7 Across the borough there are numerous difficult sites which cause nuisance to 

neighbours and are the focus for various types of anti social behaviour. In some 
cases the most sustainable solution is to purchase the site as part of an 
improvement plan. 

 
1.8 Where the purchase or development is by an RSL then the Council will receive 

100% nomination rights. The Council will not pay 100% of the total costs, there will 
always be a contribution by the RSL which will be negotiated in each case along 
with rent levels. 

 

Page 24



2. Compulsory Purchase 
 
2.1 If the owner is unwilling or unable to cooperate then in appropriate cases the matter 

will be reported to the Executive with a recommendation that the property 
concerned be the subject of a compulsory purchase order.  This is a complex 
procedure and will be done in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council. 

 
2.2 Appendix 1 describes when compulsory purchase will be recommended. 
 
3. Use of the Property after Purchase 

 
3.1 Most purchases will in fact be by RSL’s using Council funding. In these cases the 

properties will be used for residential purposes with 100% nomination rights going 
to the Council. All of the targeted empty properties are two and three bedroom 
family houses. 

 
4. Safeguards 
 
4.1 Buying property always entails a degree of risk. We will reduce the risk by: 

 
• Only purchasing property when there is no realistic alternative. 
 
• Wherever possible, using another agency to purchase the property 
 
• Consulting with valuers and other experts to ensure we have the best price and 

the best information. 
 
• Consulting with members and neighbours to ensure that we have the support of 

the community. 
 
• Having a detailed and costed plan in place prior to purchase. 
 
• Avoiding future revenue implications and consulting the Director of Finance 

where this is a possibility. 
 
• Only purchasing when we are certain that the result will be a worthwhile, long 

term and sustainable improvement. 
 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 All purchases will be from the £1.6m which is currently allocated to private sector 

housing. 
 
5.2 In cases where the property is to be used by an RSL it is most likely that the 

Council’s costs will be treated as a grant in return for 100% nomination rights.  The 
RSLs will be expected to use the Housing Corporation’s financial appraisal model to 
work out the grant requirement. As such the RSL will be expected to contribute an 
element of private finance to meet the difference between the percentage of 
approved grant and total scheme costs. The Council will require details of the 
financial appraisal and supporting documentation such as valuation reports and 
works costs. The Council will also require any interest accrued on its contribution to 
be ring-fenced so that it can be used again in the Borough.  

Page 25



 
5.3 In the interests of ensuring that the rent levels are affordable the Council has the 

option to increase its contribution to bring the rent levels down. However, in any 
event the rents proposed by the RSL will not exceed Housing Corporation target 
rents. 

 
5.4  There maybe cases where the purchase may be of a valuable development site. In 

these cases negotiations beforehand will determine whether or not any money 
should be paid back to the Council. 

 
6. Consultation 
 
6.1 The following were consulted: 

 
Finance Manager – Housing and Health Department 
Head of Asset Management and Development 
Head of Regeneration 

 
 
 
 
The following Background Papers were used in preparation of the above report: 
 

• Private Sector Housing Strategy 
• Executive Report - 15 April 2003 (Minute 396) 
• Executive Report - 7 October 2003 (Minute 140) 
• Executive Report - 26 October 2004 (Minute 168) 

 

Page 26



APPENDIX 1 
 

WHEN COMPULSORY PURCHASE WILL BE RECOMMENDED 
 
 
1. A property will only be recommended for compulsory purchase in the following 

circumstances. 
 
1.1. When it is substantially prejudicial to the health or safety of occupants, visitors or 

neighbours, and/or 
 
1.2. When it is substantially detrimental to the local amenity, and/or 
 
1.3. It presents a development opportunity which will benefit the community and 
 
1.4. There is no realistic expectation that the situation will be improved on a long term 

basis, or the development be undertaken by the current owner, and 
 
1.5. It is not possible to agree a voluntary sale with the owner. 
 
1.6. There is community support for compulsory purchase. 
 
 
2. If the above criteria are met then the following tests have to be applied:- 
 
2.1. Is there a plan in place regarding the long term future of the property? 
 
2.2. Are the necessary resources available? 
 
2.3. Are the necessary partnerships in place? 
 
2.4. If there are long term revenue implications for the Council are there resources 

available? 
 
 The tests described in paragraph 2 will be answered in consultation with 

appropriate agencies including the Director of Finance, the head of Planning, the 
head of Regeneration and the Housing Corporation. 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

8 MARCH 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
 

BEST VALUE REVIEW OF REGENERATION: 
INSPECTION REPORT AND 3RD QUARTERLY 
PROGRESS REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 
FOR DECISION 

 
This report is for the Executive as it deals with issues of a strategic nature.  
 
Summary 
The Audit Commission carried out a final Inspection of the Best Value Review of 
Regeneration in October 2004.  The Inspectors formally notified the Council of their 
findings on 3rd February, assessing the service as “good” (two stars) with “promising” 
prospects for improvement.  This is one of the Council’s best BVR ratings and one of 
the best assessments achieved by any regeneration service in the country.  The 
Inspection report also made further recommendations to strengthen the service.  
These are summarised below and will be incorporated into the Improvement Plan 
reporting cycle 
 
A significant factor in the Inspectors’ positive assessment was the robust and 
comprehensive BVR Improvement Plan agreed by the Executive in February 2004.  
The third quarterly report on implementation of the Improvement Plan is attached as 
Appendix A.   
 
Recommendation 
The Executive is asked to agree the key recommendations of the Inspection Report 
that the Council:  
 

• Review how capital finance can be used to lever in other funding to support 
regeneration; 

• Progress the Local Development Scheme to ensure the adoption of a planning 
framework that will enable key sites to be developed in line with regeneration 
objectives; and 

• Encourage and support Members to champion regeneration within and outside 
the borough. 

 
Reason 
Implementation of the Improvement Plan is critical to the Community Priority of 
Regenerating the Local Economy. 
 
Wards Affected 
Borough wide. 
 
Contact 
Officer:  
Jeremy Grint 

Head of Regeneration 
Implementation 

Tel:  020 8227 2443 
Fax: 020 8227 5326 
E-mail:jeremy.grint@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 29



 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Council received an agreed copy of the Audit Commission’s Inspection Report 

on the Best Value Review of Regeneration on 3rd February.  The Inspectors 
assessed the service as “good” (two stars) with “promising” prospects for 
improvement.  This is one of the Council’s best ratings for a Best Value Review.  
Although comparatively few cross-cutting reviews of this kind have been conducted 
to date, it is also one of the best assessments achieved by any regeneration service 
in the UK. 

 
1.2 The report contains a number of positive conclusions.  It commends the Council on 

its clear sense of direction, improvements in cross-departmental working and on our 
regeneration strategy’s “fit” with the Government’s policies for the Thames 
Gateway.  It notes that our programmes and projects are generally targeted on 
areas of greatest need.  It finds that the Council’s regeneration service is self-aware 
and able to learn from its own experience and best practice elsewhere, 
underpinning the assessment that we have “promising” prospects for improvement.  
Crucially, the Inspectors comment favourably on the enthusiasm and commitment 
of the Council’s own regeneration staff and the endorsement by key external 
delivery agencies of the Council as a partner.  We have arranged a reception to 
celebrate our success and thank staff and partners for their efforts. 

 
1.3 The Inspection Report makes further recommendations for continuing improvement 

in regeneration services.  The priorities are making more use of capital finance to 
lever in external resources, putting the planning framework in place to support 
development of sites in line with regeneration objectives, and supporting Members 
to champion regeneration more effectively.  Other recommendations include the 
development of key indicators in the Balanced Scorecard over the next 3-5 years, 
improvements to our programme management systems, and honing our use of 
research to target project delivery on those in greatest need.  The Inspectors’ 
recommendations will be incorporated into the Improvement Plan and reported to 
the Executive through the quarterly reporting cycle. 

 
1.4 The Inspection Report confirms the strength of the Improvement Plan adopted by 

the Executive in February 2004 and the significant progress made in implementing 
it.  The third quarterly report on implementation is attached.  It shows that the 
greater part of the actions identified in the Improvement Plan have now been 
achieved, or are well underway.  Regeneration officers are currently developing 
new systems for programme and performance management, which we expect to 
have in place by the summer of 2005.  At this point it may prove to be the case that 
the administrative burden of maintaining a separate reporting line for the 
Improvement Plan outweighs any service improvement or performance 
management advantages.  In that case we will revert to the Executive to 
recommend a streamlining of monitoring systems, perhaps through mainstreaming 
the remaining Improvement Plan reporting requirements into the Balanced 
Scorecard process.   

Page 30



 
2. Financial Implications 
 
2.1 This is a progress report on the implementation of the agreed Improvement Plan.  

There are no financial risks or implications for the Council.  Finance Department is 
content with the report. 

 
3. Consultation 
 
3.1 The report was compiled from contributions by officers in: Regeneration and 

Environment; Education, Arts and Libraries; Corporate Strategy; Social Services; 
and Housing and Health.  It was discussed by the Regeneration Programme 
Management Board on 14th February and by the Regeneration Board (TMT and the 
Lead Member for Regeneration) on 22nd February 2005. 

   
Background Papers 
 

• Regeneration Best Value Improvement Plan 
• Audit Commission Inspection Report, December 2004 
• Regeneration Best Value Improvement Plan: Progress Report February 2004 

 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 
R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 B

ES
T 

VA
LU

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

PL
A

N
: P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
JU

N
E 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

 –
 A

C
H

IE
VI

N
G

 S
TE

P 
C

H
AN

G
E 

IN
 R

EG
EN

ER
AT

IO
N

 
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n 

U
pd

at
e 

1 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
el

iv
er

y 
 

1.
1 

R
es

tru
ct

ur
e 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

fu
nc

tio
n 

to
 g

iv
e 

a 
si

ng
le

 
di

vi
si

on
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
U

ni
on

s,
 th

e 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

ag
re

ed
 th

e 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

of
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
3.

  T
he

 n
ew

 s
tru

ct
ur

e,
 w

hi
ch

 c
re

at
ed

 u
ni

fie
d 

D
iv

is
io

ns
 

fo
r R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t, 

ca
m

e 
in

to
 e

ffe
ct

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
3.

  T
he

 n
ew

 p
os

ts
 

w
er

e 
ad

ve
rti

se
d 

in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
an

d 
la

rg
el

y 
fil

le
d 

by
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

4.
  

Th
re

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 v
ac

an
ci

es
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 a

dv
er

tis
em

en
t. 

 
 

1.
2 

Th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f t

he
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
to

 c
om

m
is

si
on

, 
m

on
ito

r a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

e 
al

l r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
he

ld
 it

s 
in

au
gu

ra
l m

ee
tin

g 
on

 
25

th
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
3.

  U
nd

er
 it

s 
te

rm
s 

of
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

it 
is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r a

ll 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

po
lic

y 
is

su
es

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
fo

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

.  
As

si
st

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
U

rb
an

ca
nd

a 
co

ns
ul

ta
nc

y,
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 it
s 

m
od

us
 o

pe
ra

nd
i i

n 
Ap

ril
 a

nd
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

4.
 

 
 

1.
3 

Th
e 

re
-o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

st
re

ng
th

en
ed

 c
ap

ac
ity

 fo
r 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
PM

O
 p

ro
je

ct
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

A 
de

di
ca

te
d 

te
am

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
cr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
in

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
D

iv
is

io
n 

to
 w

or
k 

on
 th

is
 is

su
e.

  T
he

 
D

iv
is

io
n 

co
m

pu
te

ris
ed

 it
s 

pr
oj

ec
t m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 

qu
ar

te
r o

f 2
00

4.
  T

he
 D

iv
is

io
n 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

BP
P 

an
d 

SQ
W

 to
 a

gr
ee

 n
ew

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 C

PM
O

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  

Th
es

e 
w

ill 
en

ab
le

 u
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
lin

ka
ge

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

sp
en

d 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

em
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

.  
Th

e 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
s 

w
ill 

be
 ro

lle
d 

ou
t d

ur
in

g 
M

ar
ch

-J
un

e 
20

05
 fo

r 
BT

C
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 b
ut

 w
ill 

ap
pl

y 
to

 a
ll 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 d

ue
 

co
ur

se
.  

Th
e 

D
iv

is
io

na
l T

ra
in

in
g 

Pl
an

 m
ak

es
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
tra

in
in

g 
its

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y.

 
 

 
1.

4 
En

su
re

 im
pr

ov
ed

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 lo
bb

y 
fo

r b
et

te
r 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n 

ha
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f s

ta
ffi

ng
 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 s

ec
ur

ed
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
de

le
ga

tio
n 

in
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tro

l, 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

tw
o-

w
ee

kl
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tro
l B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 is
 in

 to
uc

h 
w

ith
 

G
oL

 to
 re

vi
ew

 U
D

P 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 re

fle
ct

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 L

D
F 

fra
m

ew
or

ks
.  

 
 W

or
k 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 to

 a
m

en
d 

th
e 

U
D

P 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 re

fle
ct

 
em

er
gi

ng
 L

D
F 

fra
m

ew
or

ks
 a

nd
 to

 re
vi

ew
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
in

 D
C

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
pr

om
pt

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ew

 P
Is

.  
Th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n 

al
so

 h
as

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 g
ai

n 
IS

O
 9

00
0 

ac
cr

ed
ita

tio
n 

in
 D

C
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

to
 re

in
fo

rc
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

ar
ly

 w
ar

ni
ng

 o
f 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
lip

pa
ge

 in
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
.  

 
 Th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n 

w
ill 

su
bm

it 
to

 th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

C
PO

 p
ow

er
s 

to
 

be
 u

se
d 

in
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
in

te
nd

s 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 le

ve
ls

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
w

or
k 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
st

at
ut

or
y 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s.
 

Page 33



2 
C

re
at

in
g 

a 
tig

ht
er

 
fo

cu
s 

on
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

 

2.
1 

Th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

ill 
be

 re
dr

af
te

d 
– 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

en
ew

al
 S

tra
te

gy
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Th

e 
ne

w
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

, "
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
in

g 
Li

ve
s"

 w
as

 la
un

ch
ed

 in
 A

pr
il 

20
04

 a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 R
en

ew
al

 S
tra

te
gi

es
.  

It 
is

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 h

an
db

oo
k 

an
d 

a 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

(P
M

F)
.  

Th
e 

PM
F 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
nd

 is
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
BV

R
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ba
la

nc
ed

 
Sc

or
ec

ar
d 

fo
r R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
  T

he
 w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 h
as

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
an

 g
re

en
/a

m
be

r r
at

in
g 

fro
m

 G
O

L 
fo

r 
20

03
/4

 a
nd

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 im
pr

es
se

d 
by

: 
  

• 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t o
f k

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

  
• 

Th
e 

us
e 

of
 S

up
er

 O
ut

pu
t a

re
as

 a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
fo

cu
s 

 
• 

A 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 th
at

 is
 a

lig
ne

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
tra

te
gy

  
 

3 
C

re
at

in
g 

a 
Sh

ar
ed

 
St

or
y 

or
 V

is
io

n 
fo

r 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

3.
1 

To
 c

re
at

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

 a
 s

ha
re

d 
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Tw

o 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 fo
r s

ta
ff,

 fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
U

rb
an

ca
nd

a,
 

w
er

e 
us

ed
 to

 h
el

p 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
.  

Th
e 

dr
af

t V
is

io
n 

w
as

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

04
 a

nd
 fu

rth
er

 w
or

k 
w

as
 re

qu
es

te
d.

  
Th

e 
Vi

si
on

 w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 th

e 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

on
 1

4 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4.

 
 Th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
ag

re
ed

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
5 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 
fu

rth
er

 w
or

k 
on

n 
“s

en
se

 o
f p

la
ce

” i
n 

Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
, t

o 
fe

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
U

D
C

’s
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
 v

is
io

n 
st

at
em

en
t f

or
 L

on
do

n 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

.  
O

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ill 

be
 ta

ke
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

LS
P 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
an

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
in

 M
ay

 2
00

5.
 

 
4 

M
ak

in
g 

th
e 

M
os

t o
f 

Fu
nd

in
g 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 

4.
1 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
th

at
 m

ee
t o

ur
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

ne
ed

s 
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
A 

Eu
ro

pe
an

 F
un

di
ng

 O
ffi

ce
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

ap
po

in
te

d 
an

d 
a 

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

 
 

4.
2 

En
ha

nc
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r f

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

, i
n 

pa
rti

cu
la

r f
ro

m
 S

10
6 

of
 th

e 
To

w
n 

an
d 

C
ou

nt
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Ac

t 
19

90
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

“P
ro

sp
ec

tu
s 

m
ap

pi
ng

” o
f s

pa
tia

l a
nd

 la
nd

 u
se

 n
ee

ds
 is

 
un

de
rw

ay
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4.

  O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 
ha

vi
ng

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 E

ng
lis

h 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

w
ay

s 
of

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 “S

ec
tio

n 
10

6 
ty

pe
” r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
sp

re
ad

 o
ut

 o
ve

r t
he

 li
fe

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

je
ct

.  
W

e 
w

ill 
su

bm
it 

a 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

on
 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r u
se

 o
f S

10
6 

m
on

ie
s.

  
5 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 E

xt
er

na
l 

Pr
of

ile
 a

nd
 In

flu
en

ce
 

5.
1 

En
ab

le
 M

em
be

rs
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
m

or
e 

fre
qu

en
tly

 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
.  

A 
br

ie
fin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r M
em

be
rs

 is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 B
al

an
ce

d 
Sc

or
ec

ar
d 

20
05

-0
6.

  A
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 b
rie

fin
g 

fo
r t

he
 L

ea
d 

M
em

be
r f

or
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n.

  M
em

be
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
br

ie
fe

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
G

ro
up

.  
 

 
 

5.
2 

U
nd

er
st

an
d 

em
er

gi
ng

 re
le

va
nt

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t p

ol
ic

y 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 
an

d 
ra

is
e 

is
su

es
 w

ith
 L

oc
al

 M
Ps

 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
.  

O
ffi

ce
rs

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Bo

ar
d/

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
du

rin
g 

20
04

-0
5 

on
 re

le
va

nt
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

O
D

PM
/H

M
T 

bu
si

ne
ss

 in
ce

nt
iv

e 
sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r t
he

 L
on

do
n 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 U

D
C

.  
Th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
re

gu
la

r l
ia

is
on

 w
ith

 M
Ps

 a
nd

 th
e 

G
LA

 M
em

be
r o

ve
r t

ra
ns

po
rt 

Page 34



is
su

es
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
.  

 
 

5.
3 

R
eq

ui
re

 a
 b

ro
ad

er
 ra

ng
e 

of
 s

en
io

r o
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
m

or
e 

pr
o-

ac
tiv

el
y 

w
ith

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Ag

en
da

 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Th

is
 w

or
k 

is
 c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d,
 w

hi
ch

 d
is

cu
ss

es
 “k

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s”

 a
nd

 s
ha

re
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t c
on

ta
ct

s 
w

ith
 k

ey
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

er
s.

  B
rie

fin
g 

is
 s

up
pl

ie
d 

fo
r 

m
aj

or
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 k

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

 
 

 
5.

4 
C

re
at

e 
an

 in
flu

en
ci

ng
 p

la
n 

at
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f a
ll 

m
aj

or
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
M

aj
or

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

ns
 c

on
ta

in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r a

na
ly

se
s.

  I
nf

lu
en

ci
ng

 a
nd

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
w

ill 
be

 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
fo

r B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 P
la

n.
   

In
vi

ta
tio

ns
 to

 te
nd

er
 fo

r t
hi

s 
w

or
k 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
is

su
ed

.  
 A 

m
ed

ia
 li

ai
so

n 
gr

ou
p 

ha
s 

be
en

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

fo
r B

ar
ki

ng
 R

iv
er

si
de

. 
 LB

BD
 is

 p
ar

t o
f O

D
PM

’s
 T

ha
m

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

Fo
ru

m
. 

6.
 

G
et

tin
g 

cl
os

er
 to

 
pr

im
ar

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

6.
1 

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

fo
r l

oc
al

 re
si

de
nt

s 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
.  

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

on
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 b
as

is
 is

 g
oo

d 
an

d 
w

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 m
aj

or
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
In

te
rim

 P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

Eq
ua

l O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 B

ar
ki

ng
 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 a

nd
 g

at
he

rin
g 

be
st

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 fo

r r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 u
se

 in
 

en
ga

gi
ng

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

ro
un

d 
pr

oj
ec

t d
el

iv
er

y.
   

 As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 L
D

F 
pr

oc
es

s,
 w

e 
w

ill 
be

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
a 

St
at

em
en

t o
f 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t t
ha

t w
ill 

he
lp

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
on

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
is

su
es

.  
 

 C
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

is
 a

ls
o 

a 
ke

y 
is

su
e 

in
 

ou
r d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

co
m

in
g 

U
D

C
.  

 
 W

e 
ar

e 
di

sc
us

si
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
a 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 th
e 

Ba
rk

in
g 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 to
 b

ro
ad

en
 th

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

th
ei

r r
ol

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e.
  T

he
 w

or
k 

pl
an

 o
f t

he
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 fo
r A

bb
ey

 G
as

co
ig

ne
 a

nd
 T

ha
m

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 to
 p

ut
 m

or
e 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t. 
  

 
 

 
6.

2 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
bi

-a
nn

ua
l B

us
in

es
s 

Fo
ru

m
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 ju
dg

ed
 it

 m
or

e 
us

ef
ul

 in
 th

e 
sh

or
t t

er
m

 to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

t a
n 

op
er

at
io

na
l l

ev
el

 w
he

re
 th

ei
r p

ra
ct

ic
al

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ca

n 
be

 m
or

e 
ea

si
ly

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
, t

he
n 

to
 a

tte
m

pt
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

la
rg

e 
fo

ru
m

 o
f t

hi
s 

ki
nd

.  
O

ur
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

w
ith

 b
us

in
es

s 
on

 a
n 

is
su

e 
an

d 
ar

ea
 b

as
is

 a
re

 n
ow

 im
pr

ov
in

g.
  M

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
in

 th
e 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k 

ar
ea

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 s

up
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ith

 m
ee

tin
gs

 
co

ve
rin

g 
Th

am
es

 R
oa

d.
  E

st
at

e 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
 a

re
 g

ra
du

al
ly

 b
ei

ng
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

 T
he

 L
BB

D
 B

us
in

es
s 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 (d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 

re
gu

la
tio

n)
 is

 n
ow

 a
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

fa
ct

.  
W

e 
be

lie
ve

 it
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

us
ef

ul
 to

 b
ui

ld
 c

re
di

bi
lit

y 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
by

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ar
ea

 
fo

ru
m

s 
th

an
 s

ee
k 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
si

ng
le

 B
us

in
es

s 
Fo

ru
m

 fo
r t

he
 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 a
t l

ea
st

 in
 th

e 
sh

or
t t

er
m

.  
 

 
6.

3 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

St
ra

te
gy

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
Th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
ag

re
ed

 a
n 

In
flu

en
ci

ng
 

St
ra

te
gy

 fo
r r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 A

pr
il 

20
04

.  
 

Page 35



 Ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
 • 

4,
00

0 
co

pi
es

 o
f a

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

br
oc

hu
re

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

irc
ul

at
ed

 
to

 li
br

ar
ie

s,
 C

ou
nc

il 
of

fic
es

, a
du

lt 
le

ar
ni

ng
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

ct
or

. 
• 

Th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

w
eb

si
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

m
od

el
ed

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 
• 

2,
00

0 
co

pi
es

 o
f a

 p
ro

m
ot

io
na

l v
id

eo
 a

nd
 d

ig
ita

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ki

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
. 

• 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ex

hi
bi

te
d 

its
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
at

 th
e 

C
ity

sc
ap

e 
Ex

hi
bi

tio
n,

 T
ha

m
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 F
or

um
 a

nd
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 S
um

m
it.

   
• 

Lo
ca

l n
ew

sp
ap

er
s 

no
w

 c
ar

ry
 re

gu
la

r p
os

iti
ve

 s
to

rie
s 

on
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

w
e 

ar
e 

di
sc

us
si

ng
 th

e 
po

ss
ib

ilit
y 

of
 a

 re
gu

la
r 

sl
ot

 fo
r r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

ne
w

s.
 

• 
W

e 
ar

e 
or

ga
ni

zi
ng

 a
 m

aj
or

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ev

en
t f

or
 B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 o

n 
M

ar
ch

 2
1st

.  
 

• 
M

in
is

te
ria

l v
is

its
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r M
ar

ch
 a

nd
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

at
 th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
Ba

rk
in

g 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 C
en

tre
.  

• 
Th

e 
fir

st
 s

ta
ge

 s
tu

dy
 fo

r t
he

 B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 M
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 P

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 te
nd

er
ed

  
• 

A 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
PR

/m
ed

ia
 p

os
t f

or
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

 
ad

ve
rti

se
m

en
t. 

  
 

 
6.

4 
O

rg
an

is
e 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

co
nv

en
tio

n 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 s

tre
ng

th
en

ed
 o

ur
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
m

br
el

la
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 d
ur

in
g 

th
is

 p
er

io
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

ith
 E

M
PA

 a
nd

 C
VS

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
ab

ou
t t

o 
st

ar
t p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

on
 a

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n.

   
 W

e 
ar

e 
di

sc
us

si
ng

 h
ow

 to
 re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
th

e 
Ba

rk
in

g 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
r P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t i
n 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n.

  
7.

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
7.

1 
En

su
re

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 fu

nd
in

g,
 in

flu
en

ce
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 C

PO
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
by

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
ffi

ce
rs

.  
G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

s 
ha

ve
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 A
ca

de
m

y.
  T

ra
in

in
g 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 n
ex

t 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 
D

iv
is

io
na

l T
ra

in
in

g 
Pl

an
.  

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 th

ei
r a

re
a 

of
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y.

 
 

 
7.

2 
En

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

, w
ith

 a
n 

ex
pl

ic
it 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
of

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

vi
rtu

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t o
ne

 
st

op
 s

ho
p 

R
es

ea
rc

hi
ng

 c
on

te
nt

 a
nd

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

er
s’

 p
or

ta
l a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
w

eb
si

te
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

di
sc

us
si

ng
 h

ow
 b

es
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 re

fe
rra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t t
ea

m
.  

 
8.

 
Ba

la
nc

in
g 

So
ci

al
 a

nd
 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

8.
1 

Fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

Pr
im

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t (

PC
T)

 a
nd

 th
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
H

ea
lth

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 re
du

ci
ng

 il
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 li

fe
 e

xp
ec

ta
nc

y 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

vi
a 

ec
on

om
ic

 in
cl

us
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

A 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

in
 S

oc
ia

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t’s
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t m

ee
tin

g.
  T

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
PC

T.
  A

 s
oc

ia
l r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ra

fte
d 

an
d 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d.
 

Th
e 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 is

 a
 m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 H

ea
lth

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
Bo

ar
d 

co
nv

en
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

di
re

ct
or

 o
f P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 th

at
 is

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

Page 36



a 
Ba

la
nc

ed
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 fo
r H

ea
lth

 In
eq

ua
lit

ie
s.

  T
hi

s 
w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 e
co

no
m

ic
 in

cl
us

io
n.

 
 

 
8.

2 
En

su
re

 th
at

 s
oc

ia
l a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
m

aj
or

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
s 

a 
pr

er
eq

ui
si

te
 fo

r t
he

m
 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

W
or

k 
is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

st
at

is
tic

al
 

ba
si

s 
fo

r t
he

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ne

ed
ed

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 c

on
ve

ni
ng

 a
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
“s

um
m

it”
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

if 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 
 W

or
k 

un
de

r t
he

 S
H

A 
to

 lo
ca

lis
e 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

TG
LP

 
he

al
th

ca
re

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ill 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

is
 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 m

aj
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

op
os

al
s 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 a

nd
 

Ba
rk

in
g 

R
iv

er
si

de
. 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

 –
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 
 

9.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

9.
1 

 
An

al
ys

e 
pa

tte
rn

s 
of

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

nd
 c

on
su

lt 
on

 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n,
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, r
et

en
tio

n 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t. 
 

C
on

tin
ua

lly
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
da

ta
 a

ga
in

st
 n

at
io

na
l b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e.

  
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
fil

l g
ap

s 
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 

C
om

pl
et

ed
. M

ap
pi

ng
 o

f a
ll 

tra
in

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 u
si

ng
 N

R
F 

fu
nd

in
g,

 a
nd

 t
he

se
 h

av
e 

si
nc

e 
be

en
 f

ur
th

er
 r

ef
in

ed
 i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 c

at
eg

or
is

at
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 b

ar
rie

rs
 t

o 
le

ar
ni

ng
 -

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
hi

ld
ca

re
 / 

cr
èc

he
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 o

f 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t r
ou

te
s.

 
 U

nd
er

w
ay

. D
at

a 
fro

m
 th

is
 re

se
ar

ch
 is

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 G
IS

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill 

al
lo

w
 f

or
 d

et
ai

le
d 

m
ap

pi
ng

 a
nd

 
m

od
el

lin
g 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n,

 a
nd

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 l

ea
rn

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

he
n 

m
at

ch
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 k
ey

 c
en

su
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
da

ta
. 

Th
es

e 
in

cl
ud

e 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

et
hn

ic
ity

 
an

d 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
w

ar
d 

an
d 

su
pe

r 
ou

tp
ut

 a
re

as
. S

ub
se

qu
en

tly
, a

ny
 

ga
ps

 in
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ill 

th
en

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
  

 U
nd

er
w

ay
. 

Th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 t
he

 l
ife

lo
ng

 l
ea

rn
in

g 
di

vi
si

on
 h

as
 

cr
ea

te
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 
da

ta
 f

ro
m

 l
ea

rn
in

g 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

in
 t

he
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 o
f 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 

re
te

nt
io

n 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t, 
an

d 
to

 
al

lo
w

 
fo

r 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 t

he
se

 d
at

a 
ag

ai
ns

t 
na

tio
na

l 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

. 
Th

es
e 

sy
st

em
s 

w
ill 

in
te

gr
at

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

m
et

ad
at

a 
lis

t; 
th

e 
LS

C
’s

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Ar
ea

 R
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

, a
nd

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 s

ur
ve

y 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

 
 

 
9.

2 
 

Id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

w
ith

 re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

to
 li

nk
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

fo
rm

al
/re

cr
ea

tio
na

l l
ea

rn
in

g 
in

to
 ro

ut
es

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 a

cc
re

di
te

d 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

Th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 th
e 

lif
el

on
g 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iv

is
io

n 
ha

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
an

 o
ffi

ce
r p

os
t w

ith
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r w

id
en

in
g 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

to
 h

ig
he

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

.  
 C

om
pl

et
ed

. 
Th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 d
ire

ct
or

y 
lis

tin
g 

co
ur

se
s 

an
d 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
, 

an
d 

is
 i

n 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n 

to
 k

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ad

ul
t 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
rs

.  
 

 C
om

pl
et

ed
. 

Th
e 

Jo
bn

et
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

(jo
b 

br
ok

er
ag

e)
 

no
w

 
ha

s 
a 

de
di

ca
te

d 
ba

se
 i

n 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 c

o-
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
 B

ar
ki

ng
 C

ol
le

ge
 

an
d 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f E
as

t L
on

do
n 

ad
vi

ce
 s

ho
p 

in
 V

ic
ar

ag
e 

Fi
el

ds
, 

Ba
rk

in
g.

  T
hi

s 
w

ill 
be

 u
se

d 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
lo

ca
l p

ro
vi

si
on

. 
 

Page 37



U
nd

er
w

ay
. 

N
R

F 
fu

nd
in

g 
is

 
be

in
g 

us
ed

 
su

pp
or

t 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
co

m
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 e

ve
nt

s 
in

 A
bb

ey
 a

nd
 G

as
co

ig
ne

 w
ar

ds
 (

th
e 

tw
o 

w
ar

ds
 w

ith
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t),
 w

ith
 f

un
di

ng
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 

ov
er

co
m

e 
th

e 
ba

rri
er

s 
to

 le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t t
ha

t c
an

no
t b

e 
m

et
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 fu
nd

er
s.

  
Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
Jo

bc
en

tre
 P

lu
s,

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

s 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t t
he

se
 w

ar
ds

, 
an

d 
th

e 
Ea

st
 T

ha
m

es
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 A

dv
ic

e 
& 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
ne

tw
or

k.
 

 Li
nk

s 
to

 
th

e 
ha

rd
es

t 
to

 
re

ac
h 

gr
ou

ps
/c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
Vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

Se
ct

or
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
Pr

ov
id

er
s 

N
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
W

el
fa

re
 t

o 
W

or
k 

fo
r 

D
is

ab
le

d 
Pe

op
le

 
St

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

. 
Ad

di
tio

na
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 

be
in

g 
so

ug
ht

 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e 
bi

dd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

Eu
ro

pe
an

 S
oc

ia
l F

un
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

es
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 to
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
.  

 O
ng

oi
ng

. T
he

 A
du

lt 
C

ol
le

ge
 h

as
 r

ec
ru

ite
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
ta

ff 
w

ith
 th

e 
br

ie
f t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

 le
ar

ne
rs

 in
 th

e 
ha

rd
-to

-re
ac

h 
gr

ou
ps

. 
 Ba

rk
in

g 
an

d 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
LS

C
’s

 ‘
Pr

of
it 

fro
m

 L
ea

rn
in

g’
 i

ni
tia

tiv
e 

in
 t

he
 c

ar
e 

se
ct

or
.  

Th
is

 s
up

po
rts

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
Le

ve
l 2

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
. 

 
 

9.
3 

 
In

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
nd

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
of

 le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

En
do

rs
em

en
t h

as
 n

ow
 b

ee
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

N
R

F 
st

ee
rin

g 
(S

oc
ia

l C
oh

es
io

n)
 g

ro
up

 to
 fu

nd
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. T

he
 d

es
ig

n 
of

 th
es

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 is
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 in
 p

ar
t u

po
n 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 G

IS
 m

ap
pi

ng
 in

 9
.1

. 
 Th

e 
co

un
ci

l m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 it

s 
st

ro
ng

 re
gi

on
al

 le
ad

 in
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

its
 ‘G

ro
w

th
 T

hr
ou

gh
 L

ea
rn

in
g’

, a
nd

 
‘G

et
 O

n 
At

 W
or

k’
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
. T

he
se

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
lit

er
ac

y,
 la

ng
ua

ge
 

an
d 

nu
m

er
ac

y 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Sk
ills

 fo
r L

ife
 a

ge
nd

a.
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 C
ha

m
pi

on
s 

(tr
ai

ni
ng

 m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
su

pe
rv

is
or

s 
an

d 
H

R
 

st
af

f) 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
cr

ui
te

d 
re

ce
nt

ly
 to

 w
or

k 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

el
y 

w
ith

 
U

ni
on

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
.  

Th
e 

ke
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 fr
om

 th
es

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

ill 
be

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 o

th
er

 k
ey

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 T

he
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
vi

te
d 

to
 p

re
se

nt
 th

e 
ke

y 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
is

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 th

e 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oy
al

 in
 M

ay
 0

5 
as

 a
n 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 
 

 
9.

4 
 

En
su

re
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
lin

k 
em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 in
fo

rm
al

/re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

le
ar

ni
ng

 in
to

 ro
ut

es
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 a
cc

re
di

te
d 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

ad
va

nc
ed

 le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
in

 fu
rth

er
 a

nd
 

hi
gh

er
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

U
nd

er
w

ay
. A

 re
ce

nt
 re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

of
 th

e 
lif

el
on

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

iv
is

io
n 

ha
s 

cr
ea

te
d 

a 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

nd
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
as

k 
gr

ou
p,

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

di
vi

si
on

.  
 A 

se
co

nd
m

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

lif
el

on
g 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iv

is
io

n 
w

ill 
sp

ee
d 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f t

hi
s 

pr
io

rit
y 

– 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
05

  
 

 
9.

5 
 

En
su

re
 th

e 
ba

rri
er

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
fin

an
ce

, c
hi

ld
ca

re
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 H
E 

ar
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
. 

Th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 t
he

 l
ife

lo
ng

 l
ea

rn
in

g 
di

vi
si

on
 h

as
 

cr
ea

te
d 

an
 o

ffi
ce

r p
os

t w
ith

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r w
id

en
in

g 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
to

 h
ig

he
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
.  

C
om

pl
et

ed
 T

ex
t 

an
d 

w
eb

-b
as

ed
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
’s

 A
im

 H
ig

he
r 

(p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 

Page 38



un
iv

er
si

ty
) 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
se

d 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
ad

ul
ts

. 
Eq

ua
lly

, 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lin

ks
 

w
ith

 
ke

y 
pa

rtn
er

s 
in

 
lo

ca
l 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

(U
EL

, 
Q

ue
en

 
M

ar
y,

 
Lo

nd
on

 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
, 

An
gl

ia
 

Po
ly

te
ch

ni
c 

an
d 

Es
se

x)
 h

av
e 

be
en

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

de
gr

ee
 c

ou
rs

es
 fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
. 

 Pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

to
 h

ig
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

by
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

up
 to

 th
e 

ag
e 

of
 

19
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 6

8%
 in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
20

01
 –

 2
00

4.
 

 A 
ca

re
er

s 
fa

ir 
fo

cu
si

ng
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ca
re

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

in
 th

e 
he

al
th

 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
se

ct
or

s 
w

ill 
be

 h
el

d 
in

 M
ar

ch
 0

5.
 

 
 

9.
6 

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
U

nd
er

w
ay

. T
he

 li
fe

lo
ng

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iv

is
io

n’
s 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
nd

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t g

ro
up

 is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
ha

t t
he

ir 
tra

in
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

ar
e,

 a
nd

 
in

 b
ro

ke
rin

g 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
es

e.
 

 U
nd

er
w

ay
 W

eb
 b

as
ed

 c
ar

ee
rs

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
as

 th
ey

 m
ak

e 
ke

y 
ch

oi
ce

s 
ab

ou
t s

ub
je

ct
s,

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

es
si

on
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

w
or

k,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

r F
E 

/ H
E.

 T
ra

in
in

g 
fo

r s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 
co

m
m

en
ce

s 
in

 M
ar

ch
 0

5 
 Th

e 
G

at
ew

ay
 to

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
pr

oj
ec

t (
LD

A 
fu

nd
ed

) i
n 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ou
tre

ac
h 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r a

du
lts

 a
nd

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e.
 

 
 

 
9.

7 
 

Id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

nd
 fi

llin
g 

ga
ps

 in
 le

ar
ni

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r a

du
lts

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

 - 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
m

ap
pi

ng
 

an
d 

an
al

ys
es

 w
ith

in
 9

.1
 

   C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

Jo
in

t w
or

k/
bi

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 ta
ke

n 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
‘B

et
te

r E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 fo

r A
ll’ 

LS
P 

Su
b-

G
ro

up
.  

In
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 ro
un

d 
of

 E
SF

, f
un

di
ng

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
aw

ar
de

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 
vo

ca
tio

na
l p

at
hw

ay
s 

in
 th

e 
cu

ltu
ra

l a
nd

 c
re

at
iv

e 
in

du
st

rie
s;

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ab

ilit
y 

sk
ills

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 a
nd

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 n
ot

 e
nt

er
in

g 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 (N
EE

T)
. 

(B
&D

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t f
ig

ur
e 

in
 L

on
do

n 
Ea

st
.) 

 D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 a
re

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 w

ith
 k

ey
 lo

ca
l e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
in

fo
rm

 th
e 

co
nf

ig
ur

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

cu
rri

cu
lu

m
 a

t t
he

 B
ar

ki
ng

 L
ife

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
C

en
tre

, d
ue

 to
 o

pe
n 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
6.

 M
ar

ke
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
of

fe
rs

 fr
om

 e
nd

 o
f M

ar
ch

 0
5 

 
10

. 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
in

co
m

e 
in

 B
&D

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 

10
.1

 
 

W
id

en
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

an
d 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

St
af

fin
g 

re
-s

tru
ct

ur
in

g 
w

ith
in

 li
fe

lo
ng

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iv

is
io

n 
un

de
rw

ay
. 

Th
is

 w
ill 

al
lo

w
 th

e 
EB

P 
to

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
 a

 w
id

er
 re

m
it 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

rio
rit

ie
s 

of
 S

M
Es

. T
hi

s 
w

ill 
be

 s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 a
 s

ec
on

dm
en

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
di

vi
si

on
 fr

om
 M

ay
 0

5 
 

 
10

.2
 

 
M

ap
 th

e 
ke

y 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
, a

nd
 in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 k
ey

 b
us

in
es

s 
su

pp
or

t 
ag

en
ci

es
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

U
R

S 
su

rv
ey

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

us
e 

in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 s
ha

re
d 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
  W

e 
ar

e 
di

sc
us

si
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ho

w
 th

is
 re

la
te

s 
to

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t n

ee
ds

. 
Th

e 
w

or
k 

on
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

se
d 

to
 

Page 39



in
fo

rm
 la

nd
 u

se
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 n
ee

ds
. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 s
ta

tis
tic

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

se
ar

ch
ed

 o
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 fo

r J
ob

s,
 e

tc
. 

11
. 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

di
gi

ta
l 

di
vi

de
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

lo
ca

l 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 IC
T 

re
so

ur
ce

s 

11
.1

 
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
tra

in
in

g 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

he
n 

IC
T 

ac
ce

ss
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

ne
w

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

U
nd

er
w

ay
. T

he
 G

as
co

ig
ne

 p
ro

je
ct

 fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 c
ha

m
pi

on
s 

is
 

un
de

rw
ay

, w
ith

 m
ac

hi
ne

s 
in

st
al

le
d 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

un
de

rw
ay

. 
 Th

e 
Te

st
be

d 
pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

3 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r p
ar

tn
er

 
pr

im
ar

ie
s 

is
 p

ro
du

ci
ng

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r f

am
ily

 le
ar

ni
ng

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

 
 

11
.2

 
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 h
om

e 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 le
ar

ni
ng

 s
tra

nd
 o

f t
he

 
Te

st
Be

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

50
00

+ 
ho

m
es

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
an

d 
lin

k 
to

 ‘W
iri

ng
 u

p 
th

e 
G

as
co

ig
ne

’ p
ro

je
ct

 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

Ad
ul

t B
as

ic
 S

ki
lls

 In
iti

at
iv

e 
is

 a
ct

in
g 

as
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t b
ro

ke
r t

o 
lia

is
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

Te
st

 B
ed

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

  B
or

ou
gh

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 in

st
al

le
d 

at
 R

ip
pl

e 
Ju

ni
or

. 
At

 M
an

or
 In

fa
nt

s 
- E

SO
L 

an
d 

lit
er

ac
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

. 
 W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 B

ar
ki

ng
 C

ol
le

ge
 c

on
te

nt
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

to
 m

ak
e 

AB
SI

 li
te

ra
cy

 a
nd

 n
um

er
ac

y 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 in
te

ra
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
al

l T
es

t B
ed

 s
ch

oo
ls

. 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 3
 –

 J
O

B
S 

AN
D

 E
C

O
N

O
M

Y 
 

12
. 

To
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 

Ec
on

om
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 

12
.1

 
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 w

ith
 m

ile
st

on
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

A 
re

po
rti

ng
 m

at
rix

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

w
e 

un
de

rto
ok

 a
 fi

rs
t m

on
ito

rin
g 

ex
er

ci
se

 o
n 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ED
S 

al
on

gs
id

e 
th

e 
BV

R
 re

po
rt.

  M
os

t a
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ED

S 
ar

e 
un

de
rw

ay
, b

ut
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

so
m

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

 th
at

 w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 a

tte
nt

io
n 

an
d 

po
ss

ib
ly

 fu
rth

er
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
nn

in
g 

by
 th

e 
ne

w
 G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

 
fo

r E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

ue
 to

 b
e 

in
 p

os
t 1

st
 N

ov
em

be
r. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
.2

 
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 b

us
in

es
s 

an
d 

in
ve

st
or

s 
to

 
at

tra
ct

 a
nd

 re
ta

in
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
th

at
 o

ffe
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

W
or

k 
is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 in

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f f

or
m

s:
  

- 
th

e 
LB

BD
 B

us
in

es
s 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 d

ea
l 

w
ith

 re
gu

la
tio

n 
is

su
es

;  
- 

th
e 

Pr
ot

oc
ol

 
be

tw
ee

n 
LB

BD
 

an
d 

G
at

ew
ay

 
to

 
Lo

nd
on

 
is

 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
; 

R
ev

is
te

d 
– 

1st
 m

ee
tin

g 
he

ld
 o

n 
11

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

- 
w

e 
in

te
nd

 t
o 

op
en

 t
en

de
rs

 f
or

 t
he

 S
m

al
l B

us
in

es
s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

in
 

Au
tu

m
n 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
- 

a 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
ev

en
t 

w
as

 h
el

d 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

04
; 

an
d 

m
on

ie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r l

ar
ge

r e
ve

nt
s 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 (

w
ith

 B
L4

L)
; 

se
llin

g 
to

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

da
ta

 b
as

e 
on

 
st

re
am

 w
ith

in
 6

 m
on

th
s 

(N
ov

 0
4)

 
-  

   
  B

us
in

es
s 

di
re

ct
or

y 
w

ill 
be

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 M

ar
ch

. 
 

 
12

.3
 

 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f b

us
in

es
s 

flo
or

 s
pa

ce
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
, b

ut
 s

om
e 

m
ile

st
on

es
 d

el
ay

ed
.  

Th
e 

C
re

ek
m

ou
th

 s
tu

dy
 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
el

ay
ed

.  
Pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 g

ra
nt

ed
 fo

r n
ew

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k.

 
 

 
 

12
.4

 
 

O
pe

n 
up

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
w

ith
in

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

du
st

rie
s 

at
 a

ll 
le

ve
ls

 fo
r l

oc
al

 p
eo

pl
e 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

W
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

e 
ar

e 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

a 
bi

d 
fo

r E
SF

 fu
nd

in
g 

in
 

th
e 

Au
tu

m
n 

of
 2

00
4.

 
 W

e 
ar

e 
se

ek
in

g 
to

 p
er

su
ad

e 
th

e 
LD

A 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 

Fo
rd

s 
ED

AP
 fa

ci
lit

y 
in

 S
ou

th
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 fo
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

tra
in

in
g.

  I
f 

so
, b

ot
h 

Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

H
av

er
in

g 
C

ol
le

ge
s 

ar
e 

ke
en

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e.
 

 Th
e 

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
ea

m
 w

ill 
be

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 in

pu
t i

nt
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 
us

e 
of

 
s1

06
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 

to
 

de
liv

er
 

th
e 

Ec
on

om
ic

 

Page 40



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tra

te
gy

.  
U

se
 o

f t
he

se
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
ill 

be
 

de
pe

nd
en

t 
on

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 

th
e 

tra
in

in
g 

si
de

 
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ca
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

 ER
D

F 
fu

nd
in

g 
w

as
 s

ec
ur

ed
 t

o 
he

lp
 d

ev
el

op
 t

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
of

 l
oc

al
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 to

 c
om

pe
te

 fo
r r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

s.
  A

n 
in

iti
al

 e
ve

nt
 w

as
 h

el
d 

at
 C

EM
E 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
04

 a
nd

 w
as

 
at

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
15

0 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

. 
 A

 s
ec

on
d 

ev
en

t 
is

 b
ei

ng
 h

el
d 

at
 

Ba
rk

in
g 

To
w

n 
H

al
l i

n 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
5.

 
 

 
12

.5
 

 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
ne

w
 s

ec
to

rs
 e

.g
. e

nv
iro

nm
en

t t
ec

hn
ol

og
y,

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 e

tc
. 

    

G
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k 

as
 a

 
fo

cu
s 

fo
r L

on
do

n’
s 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
.  

W
e 

se
cu

re
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l O
D

PM
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 a
cq

ui
re

 a
 la

rg
er

 E
TR

C
L 

si
te

 in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

4.
  W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 n

ow
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

rra
ng

em
en

ts
.  

W
or

k 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 s
ta

rt 
on

 s
ite

 in
 2

00
5.

   
 Pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
k 

at
 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k 

ha
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 fo
rm

al
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

up
gr

ad
in

g 
es

se
nt

ia
l f

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 n
ew

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r n

ee
de

d 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 s
up

pl
y.

   
D

et
ai

le
d 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 a

re
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
r f

or
 th

e 
ET

R
C

L 
an

d 
a 

ne
w

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 is

 b
ei

ng
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

. 
 

 
12

.6
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 s

ix
 s

oc
ia

l e
nt

er
pr

is
es

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
A 

so
ci

al
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
ch

am
pi

on
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ap
po

in
te

d 
an

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n 

ag
re

ed
.  

A 
 p

ro
m

ot
io

na
l e

ve
nt

 w
as

 
he

ld
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

4.
   

 Ac
tiv

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

so
ci

al
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
to

 ta
ke

 o
ut

-
so

ur
ce

d 
w

or
k 

fro
m

 a
n 

au
to

m
ot

iv
e 

pa
rts

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

 a
re

 u
nd

er
w

ay
. 

 
 

12
.7

 
 

G
et

 c
lo

se
r t

o 
bu

si
ne

ss
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

U
nd

er
w

ay
. 

 
A 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
’ 

ac
tio

n 
da

y 
an

d 
on

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

br
ea

kf
as

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 h

el
d.

  
A 

ne
w

 b
us

in
es

s 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

fo
rm

ed
 in

 R
iv

er
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 a
 T

ha
m

es
 R

oa
d 

Fo
ru

m
 

is
 u

nd
er

 e
xp

lo
ra

tio
n.

  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

a 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 

Su
pp

or
t 

D
ire

ct
or

y 
an

d 
a 

BM
E 

bu
si

ne
ss

 t
ak

e-
up

 s
ur

ve
y 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

.  
Th

e 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 D
oc

k 
O

cc
up

ie
rs

’ F
or

um
 h

as
 fa

ile
d 

to
 

el
ec

t 
an

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
C

ha
ir.

 
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 
ye

t 
to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 v
is

its
 b

y 
M

em
be

rs
 t

o 
es

ta
te

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

 o
r 

a 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 C
ha

m
be

r o
f C

om
m

er
ce

.  
 Tw

o 
se

ss
io

ns
 o

f 
an

 A
si

an
 B

us
in

es
sp

er
so

ns
’ 

Fo
ru

m
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
he

ld
. 

 Fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 t
o 

lo
ok

 a
t 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ilit

y 
of

 a
 B

us
in

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t D

is
tri

ct
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 4

 –
 T

R
AN

SP
O

R
T 

 
 

13
. 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
tra

ns
po

rt 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
an

d 
re

gi
on

 

13
.1

 
 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Tr

an
sp

or
t G

ro
up

 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
jo

b 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 fo
r a

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Tr
an

sp
or

t G
ro

up
 a

nd
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
 G

ro
up

 L
ea

de
r. 

Page 41



 
 

13
.2

 
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 a

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
St

ra
te

gy
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 lo
bb

y 
pr

oa
ct

iv
el

y 
on

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
Ea

st
 L

on
do

n 
Tr

an
si

t a
nd

 th
e 

D
LR

 e
xt

en
si

on
. 

 Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n 

to
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l I
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
is

 a
bo

ut
 to

 b
eg

in
.  

 
14

. 
En

su
re

 c
om

m
itm

en
t 

to
 M

aj
or

 P
ub

lic
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ar

ea
 

14
.1

 
 

Se
cu

re
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 B
ar

ki
ng

 S
ta

tio
n 

by
 2

00
6 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

fir
st

 m
ile

st
on

e 
– 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
re

as
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t –
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
et

. 

 
 

14
.2

 
 

En
su

re
 th

at
 m

aj
or

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

ar
ea

s 
ha

ve
 g

oo
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

po
rt 

lin
ks

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t f

or
 

Lo
nd

on
 in

 o
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 tr

an
sp

or
t l

in
ks

. 
 W

e 
se

cu
re

d 
O

D
PM

 fu
nd

in
g 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
 a

 n
ew

 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
at

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k,

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
lin

k 
C

2C
, D

LR
, E

LT
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 P
ar

k,
 th

e 
ne

w
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
t S

ou
th

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 a

nd
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

in
 D

ag
en

ha
m

.  
 

 
14

.3
 

 
En

co
ur

ag
e/

lo
bb

y 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fir
st

 p
ha

se
 o

f t
he

 
Ea

st
 L

on
do

n 
Tr

an
si

t b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 M

Ps
 a

nd
 th

e 
LA

 M
em

be
r, 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

lo
bb

ie
d 

st
ro

ng
ly

 fo
r a

n 
ea

rly
 in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Ea
st

 L
on

do
n 

Tr
an

si
t a

nd
 to

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f i

ts
 d

es
ig

n.
  P

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 
w

er
e 

or
ga

ni
se

d 
fo

r o
ffi

ce
rs

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
an

d 
fo

r t
he

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
in

 
M

ay
 2

00
4.

 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

 G
LA

 m
em

be
r/l

ob
by

 T
fL

 (S
ep

te
m

be
r) 

an
d 

th
e 

M
ay

or
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
 o

f E
LT

.  
Al

so
 re

qu
es

te
d 

EP
 lo

bb
y 

Tf
L 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
EL

T 
co

m
pl

et
io

n.
 

 
 

14
.4

 
 

Lo
bb

y 
an

d 
ac

ce
le

ra
te

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 fo
r t

he
 D

LR
 e

xt
en

si
on

 to
 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k 

by
 2

00
9 

Th
is

 is
su

e 
ha

s 
fe

at
ur

ed
 p

ro
m

in
en

tly
 in

 o
ur

 d
ea

lin
gs

 w
ith

 T
fL

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r. 

 O
ur

 G
LA

 M
em

be
r a

nd
 M

Ps
 h

av
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
d 

in
 

lo
bb

yi
ng

. 
 

 
14

.5
 

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

st
ud

y 
an

d 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 P

la
n 

fo
r n

ew
 

st
at

io
n 

at
 R

en
w

ic
k 

R
oa

d 
to

 s
er

ve
 B

ar
ki

ng
 R

ea
ch

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

th
e 

br
ie

f f
or

 a
 fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

st
ud

y.
  T

hi
s 

is
 a

bo
ut

 to
 u

nd
er

go
 C

PM
O

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 a

nd
 w

ill 
th

en
 b

e 
ad

ve
rti

se
d.

  A
n 

O
JE

C
 n

ot
ic

e 
w

ill 
be

 is
su

ed
 in

 J
ul

y/
Au

gu
st

. 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 5
 –

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 
 

 
 

15
. 

En
su

re
 th

at
 a

ll 
ho

us
in

g 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

la
rg

er
 s

ite
s 

ha
ve

 a
 g

en
ui

ne
 m

ix
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s 

an
d 

te
nu

re
s 

15
.1

 
 

C
on

fir
m

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
th

e 
te

nu
re

 a
nd

 ty
pe

 o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 th
at

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
be

 s
ee

ki
ng

 fr
om

 B
ar

ki
ng

 R
ea

ch
/S

ou
th

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

/B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 a
nd

 la
nd

 d
is

po
sa

l a
re

as
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

A 
jo

in
t E

P/
LB

BD
 s

tu
dy

 o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 o
f L

BB
D

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

, w
ith

 re
su

lts
 

du
e 

in
 J

ul
y/

Au
gu

st
. 

 Th
er

e 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 d
ia

lo
gu

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
G

LA
 a

bo
ut

 le
ve

ls
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s.
  T

hi
s 

w
ill 

be
 in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ab

ov
e 

st
ud

y 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 h
ou

si
ng

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r B

TC
 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 in
 d

ra
ft 

fo
rm

. 
 

 
15

.2
 

 
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
in

 fo
rth

co
m

in
g 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

U
nd

er
w

ay
. 

 
 

15
.3

 
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 s

ur
ve

y 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
Fo

rd
ha

m
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

w
as

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 to

 c
on

du
ct

 th
is

 
su

rv
ey

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4.
  F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
be

ga
n 

in
 J

un
e 

w
ith

 fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 
or

ga
ni

se
d 

fo
r J

un
e 

an
d 

Ju
ly

.  
Fi

na
l r

ep
or

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
05

.  
R

ep
or

t t
o 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
ho

lis
tic

 v
ie

w
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 
ne

ed
 w

ith
 fi

nd
in

gs
 o

f B
BP

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Ba

rk
in

g 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

. 

Page 42



 
 

15
.4

 
 

M
on

ito
r t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
PI

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
U

D
P/

LD
F 

an
d 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t b
rie

fs
 

G
LA

 h
av

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
Lo

nd
on

-w
id

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
on

ito
rin

g 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

ni
ng

 is
 fe

ed
in

g 
in

to
. 

16
. 

En
su

re
 th

at
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 
cr

ea
te

d 

16
.1

 
 

D
ef

in
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 fo
r L

BB
D

 in
 c

on
te

xt
 o

f 
Eg

an
 re

vi
ew

 o
n 

th
e 

ke
y 

cr
ite

ria
 th

at
 m

ak
e 

up
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Bo

ar
d 

in
 A

ug
us

t. 
 R

ev
is

io
ns

 
to

 b
al

an
ce

d 
sc

or
ec

ar
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

ar
e 

pi
ck

in
g 

up
 th

em
es

.  
 

 
 

16
.2

 
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 H

om
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Zo
ne

s 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 h

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
, o

ffe
rin

g 
as

si
st

an
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
de

ce
nt

 h
om

es
 in

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

Yo
ut

h 
O

ffe
nd

in
g 

Te
am

 is
 n

ow
 w

or
ki

ng
 in

 th
e 

fir
st

 
Zo

ne
, w

ith
 £

50
00

 p
ut

 to
w

ar
ds

 a
lle

y 
ga

tin
g,

 g
ro

un
d 

w
or

ks
 a

nd
 tr

ee
 

pl
an

tin
g.

  1
00

%
 o

f h
om

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 o
ffe

re
d 

ad
vi

ce
, 1

02
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 s

ur
ve

ye
d 

an
d 

de
ta

ile
d 

ad
vi

ce
 g

iv
en

.  
10

2 
dw

el
lin

gs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 re
fe

rre
d 

to
 th

e 
w

ar
m

 z
on

e.
 . 

Se
co

nd
 H

IZ
 a

re
a 

ch
an

ge
d 

to
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t (
N

R
A)

 –
 te

nd
er

ed
 a

nd
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

.  
D

ra
ft 

of
 In

te
rim

 R
ep

or
t P

ro
du

ce
d.

 
  • 

   
   

   
Th

e 
fir

st
 H

IZ
 (T

he
 R

yl
an

ds
) w

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

04
. W

e 
ar

e 
no

w
 w

or
ki

ng
 in

 tw
o 

ot
he

r a
re

as
. 

•  
   

   
   

Fa
ns

ha
w

e 
Av

en
ue

 - 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ap
po

in
te

d 
an

d 
w

ill 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
ei

r a
ss

es
sm

en
t b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
. 

Fa
ns

ha
w

e 
Av

en
ue

 is
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 g

at
ew

ay
 a

re
a.

 T
he

 o
ld

 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
 T

an
ne

r S
tre

et
 is

 s
ur

ro
un

de
d 

by
 n

ew
 

bu
ild

 w
hi

ch
 is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 B

ar
ki

ng
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n.
 

•   
    

    
B

ro
ad

 S
tr

ee
t, 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 - 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

po
in

te
d 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 a
 "h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
" o

n 
th

e 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
of

 th
e 

sh
op

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
op

tio
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 p
la

nn
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
. A

 lo
t o

f w
or

k 
ha

s 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

do
ne

 o
n 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
AS

B.
 

Th
e 

D
ig

by
 G

ar
de

ns
 s

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 s
ite

 w
ill 

st
ar

t s
oo

n.
  

 
 

 
16

.3
 

 
Id

en
tif

y 
tra

ns
po

rt 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
en

su
re

 it
 is

 
lin

ke
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ha
si

ng
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
, w

ith
 d

el
ay

s 
to

 s
om

e 
m

ile
st

on
es

.  
Th

e 
w

or
k 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f t

he
 T

ha
m

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k.
  M

ee
tin

gs
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 
va

rio
us

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

he
re

 d
ra

ft 
pr

os
pe

ct
us

 u
se

d 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

 e
g,

 T
fL

, U
D

C
, O

D
PM

. 
 

 
16

.4
 

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 ‘H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 A
pp

ra
is

al
’ f

or
 a

ll 
ex

is
tin

g 
C

ou
nc

il 
ow

ne
d 

es
ta

te
s 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 s
yn

er
gy

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 th

e 
G

as
co

ig
ne

, L
in

to
ns

, L
on

do
n 

R
d.

/N
or

th
 

St
. a

nd
 T

ha
m

es
 V

ie
w

 E
st

at
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 d
ra

w
n 

up
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

  P
PC

R
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

s 
IT

A;
 N

BA
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 fo
r s

to
ck

 c
on

di
tio

n 
su

rv
ey

.  
Th

e 
St

oc
k 

O
pt

io
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 B

eh
a 

W
illi

am
s 

N
or

m
an

 w
as

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 

in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4.
  A

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 fo
ru

m
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
.  

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
of

fic
er

s 
ar

e 
ho

ld
in

g 
in

te
rn

al
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 d
ef

in
e 

lin
ks

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

ns
.  

10
0%

 s
ur

ve
y 

of
 

al
l t

en
an

ts
 w

ith
 2

0%
 re

tu
rn

.  
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f b
as

el
in

e 
po

si
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ile
st

on
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
R

ep
or

t t
o 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
on

 8
th

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

to
 

re
po

rt 
ba

se
lin

e 
fig

ur
e 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

m
ix

 a
nd

 m
at

ch
 o

pt
io

ns
 

17
. 

En
su

re
 L

BB
D

 
fa

ci
lit

at
es

/e
nc

ou
ra

ge
s 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

17
.1

 
 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
LB

BD
 a

s 
ke

y 
lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r h
ou

se
 b

ui
ld

er
s 

in
 th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

ho
us

eb
ui

ld
er

s,
 w

ith
 th

e 
br

ie
f f

or
 th

e 
Ta

nn
er

 S
tre

et
 T

ria
ng

le
 a

bo
ut

 to
 

be
 is

su
ed

.  
Th

e 
C

ha
rle

co
te

 R
oa

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t h
as

 w
on

 fo
ur

 
ho

us
in

g 
de

si
gn

 a
w

ar
ds

.  
W

e 
in

te
nd

 to
 s

ta
rt 

w
or

k 
on

 a
 p

ro
m

ot
io

na
l 

Page 43



st
ra

te
gy

 o
ve

r t
he

 s
um

m
er

. 
 Th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t h
as

 d
ec

id
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

U
D

C
 w

ill 
ta

ke
 o

ve
r p

la
nn

in
g 

po
w

er
s.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 U
D

C
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 w
an

t t
o 

us
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ta
ff 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 it
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 w

ill 
lia

is
e 

to
 d

ev
is

e 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s 

th
at

 w
ill 

pr
ot

ec
t t

he
 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
in

te
re

st
s 

in
 th

is
 re

sp
ec

t. 
18

. 
Al

l n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
m

es
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r l
ea

rn
in

g 
fo

r 
pr

ov
id

e 
IC

T 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 

18
.1

 
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
on

 s
pa

ce
 fo

r l
ea

rn
in

g 
in

 n
ew

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 e
xp

la
in

ed
 o

ur
 p

ol
ic

y 
to

 o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

 R
SL

s 
an

d 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

Ba
rk

in
g 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 In
te

rim
 P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e.
  T

he
 B

al
an

ce
d 

Sc
or

ec
ar

d 
fo

r H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 s
et

s 
a 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 5
0 

ho
m

es
 in

 2
00

4/
5.

  T
he

 C
ha

rle
co

te
 R

oa
d 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

th
e 

fir
st

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
is

 p
ol

ic
y,

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 w
on

 2
 m

aj
or

 
de

si
gn

 a
w

ar
ds

.  
Sp

ac
es

 fo
r l

ea
rn

in
g 

 to
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 3
6 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

 C
BW

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.  
 

 
18

.2
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

on
 IC

T 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 fo
r n

ew
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

.  
Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 B

al
an

ce
d 

Sc
or

ec
ar

d 
se

ts
 a

 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 to

 b
e 

br
oa

db
an

d 
en

ab
le

d 
w

he
ne

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

. 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 6
 –

 D
IS

TI
N

C
T 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

 
19

. 
Em

be
d 

a 
de

si
gn

 
cu

ltu
re

 in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
19

.1
 

 
Ap

po
in

t D
es

ig
n 

C
ha

m
pi

on
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
An

 in
te

rn
al

 c
an

di
da

te
 to

ok
 u

p 
po

st
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

4.
  

 
 

 
19

.2
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 D
es

ig
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

th
at

 s
et

s 
a 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
ch

am
pi

on
in

g 
a 

de
si

gn
 c

ul
tu

re
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
ag

re
ed

 a
 D

es
ig

n 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
4,

 w
ith

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 d

ue
 

to
 b

eg
in

 in
 th

e 
th

ird
 q

ua
rte

r o
f t

he
 y

ea
r. 

 A
 D

es
ig

n 
St

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

 
w

ill 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r 2
00

5-
06

. 
 

 
19

.3
 

 
Ad

op
tio

n 
of

 a
 P

ub
lic

 R
ea

lm
 S

tra
te

gy
 th

at
 s

et
s 

ou
t a

 lo
ng

-
te

rm
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k.
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

£2
m

 in
 O

D
PM

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 F
un

d 
m

on
ey

 
w

as
 s

ec
ur

ed
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

4.
  T

he
 'B

ar
ki

ng
 C

od
e'

 (a
 p

al
le

t o
f 

qu
al

ity
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 re

al
m

 w
ith

in
 

Ba
rk

in
g 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

) a
nd

 c
on

ce
pt

 d
es

ig
ns

 fo
r f

ou
r p

ilo
t p

ro
je

ct
s 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
. 

  A 
pr

oj
ec

t m
an

ag
er

 is
 n

ow
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 th

e 
fir

st
 p

ilo
t p

ro
je

ct
 o

ut
si

de
 

Th
e 

Br
oa

dw
ay

 is
 n

ea
rin

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

n.
   

20
. 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
ity

 o
f t

he
 

Bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
Pa

rk
s 

an
d 

G
re

en
 S

pa
ce

s 

20
.1

 
 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
 B

or
ou

gh
-w

id
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
th

at
 s

up
po

rts
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 ic

on
ic

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
w

ill 
fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

 S
tra

te
gi

es
 fo

r t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 (s
ee

 
ab

ov
e)

. 

 
 

20
.2

 
 

Ap
po

in
tm

en
t o

f a
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 fo

r t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

Pa
rk

s 
an

d 
G

re
en

 S
pa

ce
s 

St
ra

te
gy

 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
.  

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 to

ok
 u

p 
po

st
 e

nd
 M

ay
 2

00
4.

 

 
 

20
.3

 
 

Im
pl

em
en

t P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 G

re
en

 S
pa

ce
s 

St
ra

te
gy

 
Ph

as
e 

1 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

se
cu

re
d 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ad
op

te
d.

 B
y 

en
d 

of
 q

tr 
3 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 to

 m
ile

st
on

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
is

 5
9%

n 
an

d 
ye

ar
 

en
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 to

 ta
rg

et
s 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 6

5%
. S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 n

ow
 m

ee
ts

 a
s 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
pa

ne
l o

n 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

is
 to

 
re

vi
ew

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. F
ro

m
 2

00
5-

06
 o

nw
ar

ds
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 th

e 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
G

re
en

 S
pa

ce
s 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

Le
is

ur
e 

& 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

iv
is

io
n 

Ba
la

nc
ed

 S
co

re
ca

rd
. 

  

Page 44



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

8 MARCH 2005  
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & HEALTH 
 
 
HOUSING FUTURES: STOCK OPTION APPRAISAL FOR DECISION 
 
This report concerns the future of the Council’s housing stock and the regeneration of a 
number of flatted estates. 
 
Summary 
 
This report sets out the background to the Government’s target and standard for 
achieving decent homes for all council and social housing. The report highlights the 
review of the stock option baseline position and suggests the recommended way 
forward. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 

a) Agree that Model 3 set out in para. 5.12. as the route on which further analysis 
in undertaken including: 
� Feasibility studies on Borrowing and Private Finance Initiative. 
� A further 100% survey of tenants to confirm their support for the direction 

the Council is taking 
� Undertake detailed consultation with High Rise tenants 
� Undertake further staff briefings in April 2005 
� Present findings to the Housing Futures Forum in May 2005 
� Identifying ways in which Model 3 can become affordable 
� Review the viability of tenant aspirations 

 
Reasons 
 
The proposed model 3 will best deliver the decent homes target, tenants’ aspirations 
and will aid delivery of the regeneration of the borough. 
Contact: 
David Woods 
 

Job title 
Director of Housing 
& Health 

(Tel:) 0208 227 5700 
(Fax:) 
(Minicom:) 
Email: david.woods@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
1. Background  
 
1.1 National Context 

As part of the Government’s desire to link increased spending on better outcomes, 
a target was established to ensure that all social housing meets set standards of 
decency – the Decent Homes Standard (DHS). In Barking & Dagenham the 
development of this strategy has been branded ‘Housing Futures’. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 45



1.2 Barking & Dagenham Context 
 
1.2.1 Mix’n’Match Solution 

The result of the review of the baseline position presented to Members in July 2004 
resulted in Members agreeing to a ‘Mix’n’Match’ solution for delivering the DHS and 
the wider objective of housing regeneration.  This report recommends a way 
forward which meets with this criteria and if accepted will have significant 
consequences for the future management and maintenance of the Council’s 
housing stock  

 
1.2.2 Best Value  

Housing Futures was set up to review the investment options established by the 
Government and to lever in the ‘Challenge’ and ‘Compete’ element of the review of 
the Landlord Services.  The outcome of the Housing Inspectorate’s review of 
Landlord Services in October 2004, graded the service ‘1* with promising 
prospects’.   In order for the division to demonstrate that it can meet tenants 
expectations for delivering management services in the future, they have set a 
target for achieving a 2* rating by September 2005 

 
2. Producing the Baseline Figure and Engaging with Stakeholders 
 
2.1 The process has closely followed the Office for the Deputy Prime Minister guidance 

on Stock Option Appraisal and both the Community Housing Task Force and GOL 
have been involved at all stages. 

 
2.2 Members agreed the recruitment of Beha Williams Norman Limited to act as the 

Council’s advisors in carrying out the stock option appraisal.   
 
2.3 An existing contract was extended in order that they carry out a 100% external 

survey on all high rise (over five floors) stock and 20% internal survey of stock 
condition.  

 
2.4 PPCR were recruited jointly with tenants to act as the Independent Tenants’ Advisor 

and in October 2004 a 100% Tenants’ Aspirations Survey was commissioned by 
the Council and 20% of tenants responded.  The summary of the results of this 
survey is attached as Appendix A.  Notable highlights of this survey includes: 

 
� 91% said that it was important for the Council to manage and maintain their 

homes 
� 79% said it was important that their home was owned by the Council 
� Top home improvements for tenants in houses and low rise is new kitchens 

and bathrooms 
� Top home improvements for high rise tenants is security and improved 

communal areas 
 
2.5 Other factors to consider when determining the baseline figure are the affects of 

rent restructuring as well as the wider regeneration of the borough.  Members have 
agreed that identifying housing regeneration areas is part of the strategy for 
meeting the Decent Homes Standard.  These schemes are being worked on and 
proposals will be presented to Members at the appropriate times.  Housing 
Renewals Areas current under consideration include: 

 

Page 46



� The Gascoigne 
� The Lintons 
� London Road / North Street 
� Cadiz Court 
� Eastern End Thames View 
� Marks Gate -  Padnall Court / Reynolds Court  

 
2.6 In terms of consultation and involvement of key stakeholders, Members and 

Tenants agreed to a framework of consultation and involvement and this was also 
approved and signed off ODPM in October 2004.  Key groups involved in the day to 
day steering of the project include: 

 
� Housing Futures Forum – the commission set up to investigate the options 

and recommended the proposed solution. 
� The Housing Futures Residents’ Forum – chaired and led by tenants 

representing the six community housing partnerships. 
� Staff Forum – represented by a full range of staff and unions 

 
3. Decent Homes Standard  
 
3.1 A decent home meets the following four criteria  
 

i. It meets the current minimum standard for housing 
ii. It is in a reasonable state of repair  
iii. It has reasonably modern facilities and services, has a minimum of four out 

of six of the following criterion:  
� Kitchen 20 years old or less 
� Kitchen with adequate space and layout 
� Bathroom 30 years old or less 
� Appropriately located bathroom and WC 
� Adequate noise insulation; and 
� Adequate size and layout of common entrance areas for blocks of flats 

iv. It provides a reasonable degree of thermal comfort 
 
3.2 The Decent Homes Standard is very basic and does not take into consideration 

many of the aspirations that tenants said they wanted for their homes and 
environment.   Appendix B outlines what tenants would get under the Council’s 
Housing Futures Standard, which replaces the Council’s Decent Homes Plus 
Standard which was produced with tenant and Member support in 2001. 

 
3.3 To achieve sign off by GOL our Housing Futures plan must show how the Council 

proposes to meet the DHS by 2010, and the extent to which Tenants Aspirations 
will be met through the plan.  This is in addition to showing that the ODPM guidance 
has been followed. 

 
4. Progress to Date 
 
4.1 In July 2004, officers presented the baseline figure to a Pre-Assembly meeting and 

the Housing Futures Forum, which took into consideration the outcome of the stock 
condition survey.   The result was a financial shortfall of around £25million.  Since 
that time officers have undertaken a great deal of investigatory work to find out what 

Page 47



the tenants’ aspirations were and their costs, and the impact of housing 
regeneration.   

 
4.2 The existing Community Housing Partnership structure forms the basis of 

stakeholder involvement and consultation.  The options appraisal process places a 
requirement on the Council to produce, along with its stakeholders, a strategy for 
ongoing involvement and communication.  

 
4.3 Tenants (which includes leaseholders) 

The Tenant Empowerment Strategy was produced in alignment with the Tenant 
Participation Compact 2004.  The Housing Futures Residents’ Forum (HFRF), 
chaired by an elected CHP Board tenant, has been meeting on a fortnightly basis in 
order to be kept abreast of project progress and ensure continuous involvement.  
The HFRF informed the development and final version of the tenants’ aspiration 
survey and played a key role in the link between the project and the CHP Boards.  
The HFRF are also fully represented on the Housing Futures Forum (HFF), as is 
the Independent Tenants’ Advisor (ITA) where they have been able to benefit from 
capacity building seminars, have been included in decisions regarding the project 
direction and provided the HFF with useful feedback on their own investigations 
around the options and estate walkabouts.  Tenants have had ongoing access to 
free advice from the ITA’s free telephone advice service. 

 
4.4 Members 

Members are represented on the high level Housing Futures Forum (HFF) by the 
Executive lead members for Regeneration and Housing, Health and Adult Care.  
Scrutiny recommended a further Member to sit on the HFF.  The HFF is chaired by 
the Director of Housing & Health. Members have also been informed, consulted and 
involved in the project through use of Member Matters, Pre-Assembly, Executive 
reports and ward member meetings. 

 
4.5 Staff 

The purpose of the Staff Forum is to enable continuous consultation with Housing & 
Health and Housing Benefits staff.  It is made up of a cross section of all Landlord 
Services staff at all levels, with a representative range of minority staff by gender, 
ethnicity and disability. It is chaired by the Head of Human Resources.  All of the 
trade unions are also represented on the Staff Forum.  As with tenants and 
Members, staff, under the guidance of the Council’s advisors and senior housing 
officers, have had presentations on the stock option appraisal process, the 
Council’s financial position and have been involved in the production of the staff 
aspirations survey.    A significant number of staff briefings and seminars have been 
held (and highly attended) throughout the project and Staff Forum members 
attended the borough wide bus tour to gain insight into the range of stock and 
related issues.  A freephone telephone line is available for all staff to discuss 
Housing Futures.    

 
4.6 Wider stakeholder group 

Involvement of the wider stakeholder group was identified and agreed at a report 
submitted to Executive in September 2004, which outlined the general process of 
involvement and communication.  Articles have been submitted in the Citizen 
magazine which targets a much broader stakeholder group.  In addition, a 
presentation was given to the Barking and Dagenham Partnership in the summer of 

Page 48



2004, which outlined the Housing Futures project and how it linked to the wider 
community issues in the Borough. 

 
4.7 Summary of Tenants’ Aspiration Survey Views about the Homes 
 
4.7.1 The majority of tenants say that their homes are well maintained (56%) and well 

managed (58%).  The top three priorities for the home is that their homes are 
properly repaired and maintained (96%), rents are kept affordable (95%) and that 
their home is managed and maintained by the Council (91%). 

 
4.7.2 There were very different home improvement priorities by high rise tenants 

compared to other tenants.  Their top three priorities are improvements in security 
and communal areas followed by a shower over a bath.  Tenants living in houses, 
bungalows and low rise blocks said that they want new kitchens and bathrooms and 
shower over bath. 

 
4.7.3 Many other aspirations were requested that are not covered by the Decent Homes 

Standard.  For example, 98% of tenants feel that dealing with anti social behaviour 
is their number one priority.  Dealing with parking on estates and graffiti removal are 
other aspirational areas. 

 
5. Cost of meeting Decent Homes and the Implications 
 
5.1 Paragraph 3 of this report clearly outlines what the Council must be able to deliver 

by 2010 in order to achieve sign off from the Government Office for London.    
However, this has been made more complex by the differences in housing repairs 
required to different stock e.g. high rise flats compared with houses, and the degree 
to which the Council is able to respond to the tenants’ aspirations. 

 
5.2 In the light of the changing picture from the development of the base case through 

to the addition to Tenants Aspirations and the application of the various options for 
achieving a Housing Futures plan three representative models have been 
produced.  These are set out in the following paragraphs.  In each case the 
following three important assumptions have been taken into account.  These were 
not included in the original model for the development of a base case: 

 
• First is that 50% of right to buy receipts are re-invested in housing throughout 

the lifetime of the plan.  This is: 
 

2008/09 2012/13 £13.9m 
2013/14 2017/18 £15.1m 
2018/19 2022/23 £18.2m 
2023/24 2027/28 £20.1m 
2028/29 2032/33 £21.0m 
2033/34 £  4.5m 

 
  

 If capital receipts are used for housing purposes, they would not be available 
for other services like schools, social services, cleaner greener safer, 
regeneration. 

 

Page 49



• £1.6m of the Community Housing Partnership annual budget for liveability is 
used to deliver Decent Homes Plus. 

 
• 75% of leaseholder costs are recovered when they fall due. 

 
5.3 Model 1 explains the revised base case position for delivering the core standard.  At 

this stage no allowance has been made for any stock losses due to regeneration 
schemes with exception of the Lintons.  Model 2 explains the position with the cost 
of tenants aspirations added to the base case.  In this instance all kitchens and 
bathrooms would be renewed when they fall due and door security will be provided.  
Roofs and electrical rewiring will be replaced when necessary etc. 

 
5.4 Model 3 is an attempt to show the effect which 6 regeneration schemes would have 

together with the refurbishment of 20 remaining high rise blocks through a PFI 
programme. 

 
The significance of each of these models is briefing explained below. 

 
5.5 Model 1 

Members will see from the attached chart that the revised base position shows the 
Housing Revenue Account to be in balance for the life of Housing Futures i.e. a 
minimum of 25 years up to 2030 and that the Council can meet the capital cost of 
decent homes with a surplus of £12.8m. 

 
If Members agree that the assumptions which underpin this model are reasonable 
then it is clear that the Council will have no case for applying for Arms Length 
Management Organisation (ALMO) status other than in exceptional circumstances.  
ALMO funding is intended to deliver the Decent Homes Standard with an allowance 
of 5% to cover Tenants Aspirations.  It can be shown from this model that the 
Council will have no deficit in meeting the Decent Home Standard and therefore 
that an ALMO application could not be substantiated.  Advice from the Office of the 
Deputy Prime Minister is that an ALMO application could only be made in these 
circumstances if meeting the Decent Homes Standard would use so much of that 
Council’s capital resources that they were unable to meet other statutory obligations 
in areas such as Education, Social Care, Leisure etc.  The assumptions and 
summarised financial analysis for Model 1 is attached as Appendix C. 

 
5.6 Model 2 

Shows that when the cost of Tenants’ Aspirations are added to the base model that 
the capital shortfall becomes some £68.6m i.e. an additional cost of about £81.4m 
over the base case.  The Housing Revenue Account remains in balance at 2010 but 
goes into deficit by around 2031.  See Appendix D.  

 
5.7 Given that Tenants’ Aspirations cannot be met within the Council’s resources, 

making reasonable assumptions as set out in Model 2, we have to consider the 
alternatives of Large Scale Voluntary Transfer, Private Finance Initiative and 
Prudential borrowing. 

 
5.8 Large scale voluntary transfer would deliver the scale of improvements needed by 

tenants, but from the Tenants Aspirations Survey and the contribution made by the 
Tenants’ Forum to Housing Futures it is clear that a very large majority of tenants 
believe it to be important that the Council remains their landlord.  In these 

Page 50



circumstances it would seem inappropriate to rely on Large Scale Voluntary 
Transfer as a major plank of our Housing Futures policy.  As such we will be 
forgoing the investment opportunity that Large Scale Voluntary Transfer gives. 

 
5.9 Private Finance Initiative – the Private Finance Initiative would allow the Council to 

transfer appropriate risk to the private sector and receive PFI credits from the 
Government to help pay for improvements.  PFI can deliver the sort of 
improvements which tenants have asked for.  The greatest risk for the Council in 
refurbishing and maintaining the housing stock relates to high rise.  This is partly 
because of the construction of high rise flats, the multiplicity of services within the 
buildings, their poor physical condition and the cost of carrying out major works 
which often include scaffolding etc.  Private Finance is likely to be most successful 
when linked to regeneration or new build schemes such as the estate regeneration 
schemes which the Council has identified as being a priority over the next few 
years.  The majority of Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) have resulted in the 
management of the stock being responsibility of the PFI consortium, although our 
preference would be to retain the management. 

 
5.10 Prudential borrowing – this is a relatively new power which allows the Council to 

borrow provided that it can afford to repay the loan over a reasonable period.  
Borrowing to carry out work to low risk such as houses and low rise flats could play 
an important part in a mix and match solution as envisaged by the Council.   The 
council has been debt free and does not currently exercise its powers to undertake 
supported borrowing. 

 
5.11 Model 3 

This model proposes a way forward in principle for meeting the DHS and all six 
elements of modern facilities, tenants’ aspirations and our housing regeneration 
objectives for the borough.   It fits with the vision of a Mix’n’Match solution that takes 
into consideration the scale of urgency behind the need to modernise our high rise 
stock as well as meet the differing needs of our other tenants.  It identifies the role 
and extent to which a mix of self financing, developer investment and government 
investment through the Private Finance Initiative can play in the process of meeting 
the Tenants’ Aspirations and revitalization of the Council’s stock and communities.  
However, this still leaves a shortfall of £28.4 million as at 2010.  The availability of 
other resources will need to be identified to bridge this gap, including the possibility 
of borrowing, with the implications identified above.  

 
It should also be noted that by 2033/34 the shortfall is £121m.  Any borrowing to 
fund HRA capital would have an impact on the General Fund, as the General Fund 
acts as the “banker”, and this will need to be fully assessed.  It should also be noted 
that in Model 3 (appendix E) that the HRA has an annual deficit of approaching 
£4m, this is before any cost of borrowing.  Consideration will need to be given as to 
how the revenue account can be brought into surplus over the 30 year period.  It 
should be noted that this option would not be funded based on the current 
assumptions. 

 
The assumptions and summarised financial analysis for Model 3 is attached as 
Appendix E. 

 
5.12 Set out in table 1 is an analysis of the Tenants Aspirations and the applicability of 

each of the stock options for meeting these. 

Page 51



 
Table 1.  Tenants’ Aspirations and the Options Balanced Scorecard 
 

 
 

MODEL 

 
Investment Option 

 
Investment 
deliverables 

Self 
Finance 

Developer PFI * Stock 
Transfer 

ALMO ** 

 
1 

Must Do 

Hit Basic Decency 
Standard (4 out of 6 
modern facilities) 

9 Not 
appropriate 

Not 
appropriate 

9 Not 
appropriate 

 
 

2 
Meets Some 
but not all 

Aspirations 

As above and New 
Kitchens and 
Bathrooms (all 
modern facilities) and 
Tenants Aspirations 
e.g. improved 
security 

 
 
9 

Consider 
Loan from 

year 
07/08 

 
 

Not 
appropriate 

 
 
9 

 
 
9 

 
Possible if 
essential 
services 
affected 

 
3 

Meets all 
aspirations 

As above and 
regenerate 6 housing 
renewal areas, High 
Rise PFI solution 

 
8 

 
9 
 

 
9 

 
8 

doesn’t meet 
tenants’ 

aspiration that 
LBBD own 

stock 

 
8 

 Score 2 1 2 2 1 
*       LBBD management of stock may not be considered as part of the bid 
**     Subject to Landlord Services reaching 2* status  

 
 

6. Implications of the Recommended Options 
 
6.1 Legal 

It is clear that a major undertaking will have to made to ensure clarity of land 
ownership and understanding the financial complexities behind the proposed 
options.  This will be needed in order to present a robust recommendation to 
Members in late May / early June 2005. 

 
6.2 Human Resources 

The impact on staff will result in the need for the production of a Change 
Management Strategy which will investigate staff training and development 
requirements as well as what the staffing implications would be for each of the 
models.  This matter will be undertaken jointly with staff and the Unions in the Staff 
Forum. 

 
6.3 Service Delivery 

The selected model will need to demonstrate in what ways it will improve on the 
quality of the service being delivered and value for money.  The Housing Futures 
project is working very closely with all key stakeholders including Thames Accord, 
who will be affected by the chosen model.  Front line staff will continue to be invited 
to Staff Briefings in order to be kept involved with progress of the project and to be 
able to deal with any basic enquiries from tenants. 

 

Page 52



6.4 Performance Management 
As a result of the Best Value Inspection October 2004, Landlord Services has 
committed itself to achieving a 2 * rating in the review due in September 2005.  This 
will establish that the Landlord Services can deliver the tenants’ aspirations for 
management of the stock.  In addition, Landlord Services would need to position 
itself as an attractive partner for a PFI consortium.  The 2 * rating would aid in 
providing Landlord Service with the necessary competitive advantage. 

 
6.5 Financial 

The combination of options produces a variety of financial challenges for the 
Council.  Each model produces a different financial outcome which justifies the 
model selected.  Discussions will take place in the next two months with external 
and internal financial experts to ensure that the financial modelling for each model 
stands up to scrutiny and conforms to Accounting requirements. 

 
6.6 Tenants and Leaseholders 

The suggested way forward, Model 3, has been given full support by tenant 
representatives who attended the Housing Futures Forum on 9 February 2005.  The 
options presented to tenants included the following justification: 
 
� Stock Transfer does not have tenant support as shown by the Tenants’ 

Aspirations Survey.  Tenants agreed at the meeting that this option should be 
rejected. 

� ALMO could not be justified because the Council can meet the DHS out of its 
own finances.  However, this option should be parked with the proviso that if 
use of the Council’s own finances has a detrimental affect on our ability to 
deliver other essential services, then this option would need to be revisited 
as per Model 2.  It was agreed therefore to hold in abeyance this option. 

� All members of the Housing Futures Residents Forum supported Model 3, 
the Mix’n’Match solution, as the preferred way forward. 

 
It is proposed that a further 100% survey is undertaken to ensure that all tenants 
have the opportunity to give their views on the way forward.  A survey designed 
specifically for tenants living in high rise accommodation which will see if we have 
arrived at the right solution for that stock i.e. PFI will be carried out.   

 
7. Conclusion 
 
7.1 The outcome of the 2004/05 Housing Stock Option Appraisal indicates that the 

Council can meet the core standard i.e. the requirement for Decent Homes plus 
other essential landlord maintenance from within its own resources.  The Council 
cannot though meet the cost of Tenants’ Aspirations in addition to the Decent 
Homes Standard.  This means that the Council has to consider one of the other 
options for funding the difference i.e. Arms Length Management Organisation 
(ALMO), Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT), Private Finance Initiative (PFI) or 
Prudential borrowing. 

 
As the Council can meet the Decent Homes Standard from within its own resources 
it would be unlikely to achieve ALMO status unless meeting the Decent Homes 
Standard would put such a drain on the Council’s capital resources that it was 
unable to meet its other obligations in areas such as Education, Social Care, 
Leisure etc.  In addition ALMO funding provides only 5% above the cost of Decent 

Page 53



Homes Standard and the cost of meeting Tenants Aspirations in this Borough is 
approximately £80m in addition to Decent Homes cost of £165m – a sum which 
would not be covered by ALMO funding. 

 
7.2 It is proposed that Stock Transfer not be pursued because the findings of the 

Tenants’ Aspirations Survey showed that there was very little support for Council 
stock to be ‘managed and owned’ by anyone else.  

 
7.3 Consultation with the Housing Futures Forum produced a unanimous view that 

model 3 is the way forward. 
 
7.4 It is recommended that we go forward on the following basis: 

• regenerate the 6 housing renewal areas: 
¾ The Gascoigne 
¾ The Lintons 
¾ London Road / North Street 
¾ Cadiz Court 
¾ Eastern End Thames View 
¾ Marks Gate - Padnall Court / Reynolds Court  

• Retain the stock with the option to undertake Prudential Borrowing to be 
considered 

• Pursue PFI as a high rise stock solution 
• Revisit ALMO if the affect of borrowing would have a detrimental affect on 

other essential services 
 
7.5 Outcomes for Model 3: 

• Meets the Decent Homes, Tenants Aspirations, and Housing Renewal 
standards 

• Addresses localism and is a neighbourhood solution 
• High Rise - targets the most difficult stock and maximises transfer of highest 

risk 
• Fits with the Council’s Regeneration programme and Community priorities 
• Maximisation of investment opportunities through a mix of financial solutions 

with scope for review 
 

8. Next Steps 
 
8.1 Pending the outcome of this report, officers will complete Phase II of the project 

plan by: 
� Surveying 100% of all tenants to test their opinion on the proposed way 

forward 
� Undertake further consultation with high rise tenants 
� Undertake further staff briefings informing them of the proposed way forward 
� Present final findings to Housing Futures Forum in May 
� Return to Members in May/early June for final decision 
� Prepare sign off with the Government Office for London by June 2005 

 
8.2 The following were consulted: 

� Director of Finance,  
� Solicitor to the Council,  
� Housing Futures Forum 

Page 54



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 T

en
an

ts
’ A

sp
ira

tio
ns

 S
ur

ve
y 

R
es

ul
ts

 
 

  
  

El
em

en
t 

St
an

da
rd

 
  

Ra
nk

 
Af

fe
ct

ed
 B

ud
ge

ts
 

Te
na

nt
s 

Ch
oi

ce
 

Af
fe

ct
ed

? 
Ho

us
in

g 
Op

tio
n 

Da
ta

 C
ap

tu
re

 
Se

t 
El

em
en

t 
DH

 
IS

 
%

 
Su

pp
or

t 
Mg

m
en

t 
Ma

in
t. 

Ho
us

in
g 

Ch
oi

ce
 

St
oc

k 
Tr

an
sf

er
 

AL
MO

 
PF

I 

Re
ta

in
/   

 
Ow

n 
fin

an
ce

s 
Vi

ew
s a

bo
ut

 
ho

m
e 

  
  

  
Le

ve
l o

f  
Sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ho

me
 w

ell
 m

ain
tai

ne
d b

y L
BB

D 
Y 

Y 
56

 
  

  
Y 

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Ho
me

 w
ell

 m
an

ag
ed

 by
 LB

BD
 

Y 
Y 

58
 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Y 
Y 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

St
an

da
rd

 of
 he

ati
ng

  
Y 

  
77

 
1 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

St
an

da
rd

 of
 w

ind
ow

s  
Y 

  
74

 
2 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

St
an

da
rd

 of
 ca

re
tak

ing
 

  
Y 

46
 

3 
Y 

  
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
St

an
da

rd
 of

 ki
tch

en
  

Y 
  

37
 

4 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
St

an
da

rd
 of

 ba
thr

oo
m 

 
Y 

  
43

 
5 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Pr
io

rit
ies

 fo
r 

th
e H

om
e 

  
  

  
Le

ve
l o

f I
m

po
rta

nc
e 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Re
nt 

ke
pt 

aff
or

da
ble

 
  

  
95

 
1 

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Pr
op

er
ly 

re
pa

ire
d &

 m
ain

tai
ne

d 
Y 

Y 
96

 
2 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Ma
na

ge
d &

 M
ain

tai
ne

d b
y L

BB
D 

Y 
Y 

91
 

3 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Y 
Y 

  
Le

ga
l ri

gh
ts,

 pr
ote

cti
on

 of
 te

na
nc

y 
  

  
89

 
4 

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Ow
ne

d b
y t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
  

  
79

 
5 

  
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Mo
de

rn
ise

d &
 im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 5 
yrs

 
Y 

Y 
85

 
6 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Mo
de

rn
ise

d &
 im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 10
 yr

s 
Y 

Y 
77

 
7 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Ou
tsi

de
 pa

int
ed

 re
gu

lar
ly 

  
Y 

71
 

8 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Ho

m
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
  

  
  

Le
ve

l o
f W

an
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ne
w 

Ki
tch

en
 

 
Y 

69
 

1 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Page 55



  
Ne

w 
Ba

thr
oo

m 
 

Y 
68

 
2 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Sh
ow

er
 ov

er
 ba

th 
  

Y 
67

 
3 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Se
cu

rity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
  

Y 
63

 
4 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Co
mm

un
al 

ar
ea

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

  
Y 

61
 

5 
Y 

Y 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

  
Re

wi
rin

g 
Y 

  
46

 
6 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Ro
ofs

 an
d e

xte
rn

al 
wa

lls
 

Y 
Y 

36
 

7 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

  
Lif

t R
en

ew
als

 
Y 

 
19

 
9 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Do
ub

le 
gla

zin
g &

 ne
w 

w/
fra

me
s 

Y 
Y 

13
 

8 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Ce

ntr
al 

he
ati

ng
 

Y 
  

10
 

10
 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Ho
m

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

  
  

  
Hi

gh
 R

ise
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Su
b 

Gr
ou

p 
Va

ria
tio

ns
 

Se
cu

rity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
  

Y 
84

 
1 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Co
mm

un
al 

ar
ea

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

  
Y 

79
 

2 
Y 

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Sh

ow
er

 ov
er

 ba
th 

  
Y 

79
 

3 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

  
Lif

t R
en

ew
als

 
  

Y 
73

 
4 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Ne
w 

Ki
tch

en
 

  
Y 

77
 

5 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Ne

w 
Ba

thr
oo

m 
  

Y 
77

 
6 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Do
ub

le 
gla

zin
g &

 ne
w 

w/
fra

me
s 

Y 
Y 

64
 

7 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Ce

ntr
al 

he
ati

ng
 

Y 
  

38
 

8 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Se

rv
ice

 an
d 

Fa
cil

iti
es

 
  

  
  

lev
el 

of
 Im

po
rta

nc
e 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ou

tsi
de

 lig
hti

ng
 

  
Y 

80
 

1 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

  
Se

cu
rity

 
  

Y 
71

 
2 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

Ma
int

ain
ing

 th
e g

ar
de

ns
 

  
Y 

61
 

3 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
He

lp 
wi

th 
Ho

us
ing

 B
en

efi
ts 

  
Y 

59
 

4 
Y 

  
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
Sh

ow
er

 fa
cil

itie
s 

  
Y 

57
 

5 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

  
So

cia
l a

lar
m 

ca
ll s

ys
tem

 
  

Y 
47

 
6 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

So
cia

l fa
cil

itie
s/a

cti
vit

ies
 

  
Y 

44
 

7 
Y 

  
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

  
Le

ve
l o

f c
ov

er
 fr

om
 w

ar
de

ns
 

  
Y 

35
 

8 
Y 

  
  

Y 
  

Y 
  

  
Co

mm
un

ica
l fa

cil
itie

s 
  

Y 
19

 
9 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

  
Y 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 56



Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Iss

ue
s 

  
  

  
lev

el 
of

 Im
po

rta
nc

e 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Co
un

cil
 P

ro
pe

rly
 re

pa
irs

 &
 M

ain
t. 

Y 
  

96
 

1 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
Te

rm
s o

f le
as

e i
s p

ro
tec

ted
 

  
  

96
 

2 
  

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
Se

rvi
ce

 ch
ar

ge
 re

fle
cte

d i
n s

er
vic

e 
  

  
93

 
6 

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Inf
or

me
d o

f w
he

n r
ep

air
s t

o b
e d

on
e 

  
  

92
 

3 
Y 

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
Cu

rre
nt 

lev
el 

of 
se

rvi
ce

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
  

  
90

 
4 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Cu
rre

nt 
lev

el 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 m

ain
tai

ne
d 

 
Y 

88
 

5 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
Co

un
cil

 re
tai

ns
 fr

ee
ho

ld 
  

  
56

 
7 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Vi
ew

s a
bo

ut
 

Ar
ea

 
  

  
  

Le
ve

l o
f I

m
po

rta
nc

e 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

An
ti-s

oc
ial

 be
ha

vio
ur

 de
alt

 w
ith

 
  

Y 
98

 
1 

Y 
  

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

Op
en

 sp
ac

es
 w

ell
 m

ain
tai

ne
d 

  
Y 

95
 

2 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Co

mm
un

al 
ar

ea
s w

ell
 m

ain
tai

ne
d 

  
Y 

91
 

3 
Y 

  
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Gr

afi
tti 

is 
re

mo
ve

d q
uic

kly
 

  
Y 

91
 

4 
  

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Pa

rki
ng

 on
 es

tat
es

 is
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

  
Y 

85
 

5 
Y 

Y 
  

  
Y 

Y 
  

  
Pa

rki
ng

 on
 es

tat
es

 is
 co

ntr
oll

ed
 

  
Y 

82
 

6 
Y 

  
  

  
Y 

Y 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Pr

io
rit

ies
 fo

r 
th

e H
ou

sin
g 

Se
rv

ice
 

  
  

  
Le

ve
l o

f I
m

po
rta

nc
e 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Hi

gh
er

 st
an

da
rd

 of
 re

pa
irs

 
  

Y 
96

 
1 

  
Y 

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 m
or

e a
ffo

rd
ab

le 
ho

me
s t

o r
en

t 
  

  
94

 
2 

  
  

Y 
Y 

  
Y 

  

  
Ha

vin
g m

or
e o

f s
ay

 in
 ho

w 
the

 se
rvi

ce
 is

 
ru

n 
  

Y 
86

 
3 

Y 
  

Y 
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
  

Hi
gh

er
 st

an
da

rd
 of

 ca
re

tak
ing

 
  

Y 
80

 
4 

Y 
  

  
Y 

Y 
Y 

  
 

Page 57



Appendix B 
The Housing Futures Standard 

 
 
� Similar to the Council’s 2001 Decent Homes Plus Standard 
� What tenants get now plus: 

o Re-roofing 
o Central heating 
o Double glazed windows 
o New kitchen 
o New bathroom//shower over bath 
o Improved security – e.g. concierge to every tower block, improved lighting, 

CCTV, Door Entry Systems 
o Lift renewals 
o Modernised & improved homes in 5 – 10 years 
o Improved standards of caretaking 
o Improved response to dealing with anti-social behaviour 
o Improved & controlled parking on estates 
 

Page 58



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 
M

od
el

 1
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 &

 S
um

m
ar

is
ed

 A
na

ly
si

s 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 
 
� 

N
o 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 (e
xc

ep
t T

he
 L

in
to

ns
) 

� 
N

o 
ki

tc
he

ns
 &

 b
at

hr
oo

m
s 

� 
N

o 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 w
or

ks
 

� 
C

en
tra

l s
up

po
rt 

co
st

s 
Y1

 £
25

0K
, Y

2 
£5

00
K,

 Y
3 

75
0K

, Y
4+

 £
1m

illi
on

 
� 

C
yc

lic
al

 R
ep

ai
rs

 Y
1 

– 
4 

£1
m

illi
on

 Y
5+

 £
0 

� 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

r r
ec

ov
er

y 
75

%
 

� 
R

ig
ht

 to
 B

uy
 u

se
ab

le
 c

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
Y5

+ 
50

%
 

� 
C

H
Ps

 £
75

0K
 

 

 
  

Page 59



A
pp

en
di

x 
D

 
M

od
el

 2
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 &

 S
um

m
ar

is
ed

 A
na

ly
si

s 
 As

su
m

pt
io

ns
: 

 
� 

N
o 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 (e
xc

ep
t T

he
 L

in
to

ns
) 

� 
Ki

tc
he

ns
 &

 b
at

hr
oo

m
s 

re
ne

w
ed

 
� 

Te
na

nt
s’

 a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t e
.g

. s
ec

ur
ity

 
� 

C
en

tra
l s

up
po

rt 
co

st
s 

Y1
 £

25
0K

, Y
2 

£5
00

K,
 Y

3 
75

0K
, Y

4+
 £

1m
illi

on
 

� 
C

yc
lic

al
 R

ep
ai

rs
 Y

1 
– 

4 
£1

m
illi

on
 Y

5+
 £

0 
� 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
r r

ec
ov

er
y 

75
%

 
� 

R
ig

ht
 to

 B
uy

 u
se

ab
le

 c
ap

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

Y5
+ 

50
%

 
� 

C
H

Ps
 £

75
0K

 

 
 

Page 60



A
pp

en
di

x 
E 

M
od

el
 3

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 &
 S

um
m

ar
is

ed
 A

na
ly

si
s 

 As
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 
 
� 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
sc

he
m

es
 –

 6
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ew

al
 A

re
as

 
� 

H
ig

h 
R

is
e 

PF
I i

nv
es

tm
en

t 
� 

Ki
tc

he
ns

 &
 b

at
hr

oo
m

s 
re

ne
w

ed
 

� 
Te

na
nt

s’
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t e

.g
. s

ec
ur

ity
 

� 
C

en
tra

l s
up

po
rt 

co
st

s 
Y1

 £
25

0K
, Y

2 
£5

00
K,

 Y
3 

75
0K

, Y
3+

 £
75

0K
 

� 
C

yc
lic

al
 R

ep
ai

rs
 re

ve
nu

e 
£0

 fr
om

 Y
2 

(c
ap

ita
lis

ed
 

� 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

r r
ec

ov
er

y 
75

%
 

� 
R

ig
ht

 to
 B

uy
 u

se
ab

le
 c

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
Y5

+ 
50

%
 

� 
C

H
Ps

 £
75

0K
 

 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

8 MARCH 2005 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & HEALTH  
 
 

MORE CHOICE IN LETTINGS 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report concerns policy issues affecting the Council and its rehousing services.  
 
Summary 
 
The Executive received reports on 9 November and 21 December 2004 in respect of 
More Choice in Lettings (MCIL) and agreed to adopt a new allocations policy, practice 
and procedures with effect from 1 April 2005.  This is the final report prior to 
implementation, which covers miscellaneous items and minor amendments to complete 
the transition from a points system to more choice to empower housing applicants.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to agree  
 
1. An annual review of the More Choice in Lettings Register. 
 
2. An amendment to the Key Worker Policy to ensure the scheme is open to employees 

resident in the Borough, as well as non-residents.  
 
3. The policy gives the Council the right to make direct offers to More Choice in Lettings 

applicants to whom there is an ongoing duty under homelessness legislation. 
 
4. To retain the existing criteria for assessing the size of accommodation an applicant 

can bid for, as indicated in para 5. 
 
5. To include in the MCIL policy that the Council does not operate blanket policies as set 

out in para 6. 
 
6. That the Council reserves the right to limit bids on certain properties that require 

sensitive letting, and support sustainable communities. 
 
Reason 
 
The proposals will bring about the realisation of the More Choice in Lettings policy in 
accordance with best practice, compliance with legislation and best address local 
housing needs and circumstances. 
 
Contact:  
Anne Baldock 
 

 
Project Leader 
Homelessness and 
Rehousing 

 
Tel: 020 8227 5186/2210 
Fax: 0208 227 5595 
Minicom : 020 8227 5755 
Email: anne.baldock@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 63



 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Executive on 9 November and 21 December 2004 agreed the new allocations 

policy ‘More Choice in Lettings’ and associated allocations procedures (Minutes 180 
and 234 respectively).  The scheme to be implemented on 1 April 2005 replaces a 
complex points system and complies with the amendments to Part VI of the 
Housing Act 1996, introduced by the Homelessness Act 2002. 

 
1.2 This final report prior to implementation of the new allocations procedure addresses 

several miscellaneous issues and minor amendments.   Appendix A attached 
contains the proposed final criteria. 

 
2. Review of the More Choice in Lettings Register 
 
2.1 It is proposed that a review of each application is carried out annually on the 

anniversary of the application.  This will keep the data accurate and valid and is 
good practice.  This procedure needs to be published as part of the Council’s policy.  

 
3. Key Worker Policy for Council Employees 
 
3.1 The procedure agreed on the 21 December 2004 in respect of key workers included 

the criterion that employees not be resident in the Borough.  This should be 
removed, as it would disadvantage key workers resident in the Borough.  

 
4. Reserve the Right to Make Direct Offers 
 
4.1 Homeless applicants to whom the Council has an ongoing duty (from  Part VII 

Housing Act 1996 as amended by the Homeless Act 2002) may receive a direct 
offer of council accommodation, if they have failed to make a bid for a suitable 
property  within one year of the duty arising.  
 

4.2 The decision as to whether a direct offer will be made will take account of the 
availability and location of vacant properties advertised throughout the period and 
any extenuating factors which have resulted in the applicant failing to bid. 

 
4.3 In the event that the Council determine that the applicant has chosen not to bid for 

suitable property, preferring to remain in the accommodation provided under the 
legislation, a direct offer may be made. If this offer is rejected but deemed to be 
suitable, the Council may discharge its duty under the Act. 

 
5. Criteria for Assessing the Size of Accommodation an Applicant Can Bid For 
 
5.1 The criteria for assessing the size of accommodation an applicant can bid for that 

was included in the report agreed by the Executive on 9 November 2004 was an 
earlier version inadvertently included.    

 
5.2 It is recommended that the existing size criteria, with the following two minor 

amendments, be retained (see Appendix A):  
 

Page 64



(a) Subject to availability the Council may make a direct offer of high rise 
property above the 5th floor to applicants with access to children which may 
be larger than their assessed need.    

 
(b) Assessments for households including pregnant women will take account of 

the unborn child when assessing bedroom size. 
 

6. Amendments to criteria supporting the policy 
 
6.1 The policy agreed by the Executive on 9 November 2004 included a qualification in 

relation to Local Connection which stated  “The applicant has family connections of 
special circumstances that require him/her to live locally”, and will be taken into 
account. This wording was inadvertently omitted from the appendix to that report. 

 
6.2 In respect of ‘Property ownership and profits’, the wording of this section is to be 

changed to any applicants who are owner occupiers or have more than £50,000 in 
assets may have their priority reduced if they successfully bid for accommodation, 
and have alternative housing solutions available to them.  This includes applications 
from elderly owner occupiers and supersedes the policy.  

 
6.3 In order to be compliant with legislation the Council must not adopt a blanket policy. 

The policy should therefore include a statement that where an applicant does not 
meet the criteria a case assessment will be carried out and due consideration will 
be given in extenuating circumstances. Such decisions should be made with 
delegated authority by the Head of Service. 

 
7. Limit bids on certain properties to ensure sensitive letting 
 
7.1 In certain circumstances, in the role of landlord the Council will need to ensure a 

sensitive letting is made to a particular type of property. This may for example refer 
to age or gender of an applicant. In order to effectively manage the stock and 
sustain communities, the Council reserve this right within More Choice in Lettings 
Allocations Policy. 

 
8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 Due to the scale and scope of the project of managing the transition from a complex 

points system to More Choice in Lettings, it has proved necessary to report to the 
Executive in stages as work has progressed. 

 
8.2 Subject to the approval of the report’s recommendations a single allocations 

document will be published incorporating all the policy and procedures agreed in 
respect of More Choice Lettings. This will be circulated to Members and an 
abridged version will be available for the public. 

 
 
The following Background Papers were used in the preparation of this report: - 
 
More Choice in Lettings Executive Reports: 9 November 2004 and 21 December 2004. 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 

TABLE OF BEDROOM ELIGIBILTY 
 
 
 
SINGLE APPLICANT 
 

 
BEDSIT 

 
SINGLE APPLICANT/COUPLE WITHOUT CHILDREN 
 

 
1 BEDROOM 

 
PREGNANT WOMEN (EXPECTING FIRST CHILD) 
 
CHILDLESS COUPLES RELEASING LARGER HOUSE 
 
PARENT/S WITH ONE CHILD 
 
PARENT/S WITH TWO CHILDREN (SAME SEX) 
 
TWO ADULTS (IE; SIBLINGS) 
 

 
 
2 BEDROOMS 
 

 
PARENT/S WITH TWO CHILDREN OF DIFFERENT SEX  
PARENT/S WITH TWO  CHILDREN PLUS PREGNANT 
PARENT/S WITH THREE CHILDREN 
  
PARENT/S AND FOUR CHILDREN 
 
(DUE TO THE SCARCITY OF FOUR BEDROOM 
PROPERTY PARENT/S WITH FIVE CHILDREN OR 
MORE  WILL ALSO RECEIVE CONSIDERATION FOR 
LARGER 3 BEDROOM PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
PERMITTED NUMBER) 
 

 
 
3 BEDROOMS 
 
 
 
 
3 BEDROOM  
PARLOUR 

 
PARENT/S AND 5 - 6 CHILDREN 
 
PARENT/S AND 5-7 CHLIDREN  

 
4 BEDROOMS 
 
4 BEDROOM 
PARLOUR 

 
PARENT/S AND 7 OR MORE CHILDREN  
 

 
5 BEDROOM + 

 
OTHER RELATIVES MAY BE INCLUDED ON AN APPLICTION SUBJECT 
TO THEIR RELATIONSHIP WITH THE APPLICANT AND IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH RECOGNISED FAMILY MEMBERS. FULL DETAILS ARE AVAILABLE 
IN THE ALLOCATIONS POLICY 
 
PROPERTY LARGER THAN ASSESSED NEED LOCATED IN HIGH RISE 
ABOVE THE 5TH FLOOR MAY BE ALLOCATED BY DIRECT OFFER TO 
APPLICANTS WITH ACCESS TO CHILDREN. 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

8 MARCH 2005 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
 

DISPOSALS AT UNDERVALUE: CORPORATE 
PROCEDURE 
 

FOR DECISION 

This concerns the setting of a policy and the decision is reserved to the Executive by the 
Scheme of Delegation. 
 
Summary 
 
This report describes the legal framework for the disposal of assets and describes how net 
capital receipts are identified, sets out options for dealing with them and sets out a 
mechanism for accepting benefits, as opposed to a capital receipt, for the disposal of assets. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree: 
 
1. That the general rule is that capital receipts should be accepted on disposal of assets; 
 
2. Where there is a proposal to forego part or all of a capital receipt the sponsor shall provide 

the justification for adopting its course and the proposal should be subject to an appraisal 
challenge.  This is in line with the previous approval by the Executive in support of 
Regeneration for Barking Town Centre and Thames View Estate.  The appraisal challenge 
will include a financial assessment of the impact of disposing of the asset on both the 
existing Capital Programme and the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy; AND 

 
3. That the decision to accept capital receipts or alternative benefits be referred to the 

Executive. 
 
Reason 
 
To assist the Council in achieving its Community Priorities of “Regenerating the Local 
Economy” and “Improving Health, Housing and Social Care”  
 
Contact: 
Colin Beever 

 
Head of Property Services 
and Facilities Management  
 

 
Tel:  020 8227 3336 
Fax: 020 8227 3223 
Minicom: 020 8227 3034 
E-mail colin.beever@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 69



1. Background 
 
1.1 Local Authorities were given power to dispose of property assets in any manner they 

wish but are required to obtain best consideration (Section.123 Local Government Act 
1972).  Any disposal at less than best consideration requires the approval of the 
Secretary of State. 

 
1.2 The exception of this authority is the disposal of property on leases for less than 

seven years. 
 
1.3 In 1998 a General Disposal Consent was introduced which enabled the disposal of 

assets at undervalue in certain limited circumstances e.g. disposal to a Charity. 
 
1.4 Government policy is that Local Authorities should dispose of surplus land and 

property wherever possible.  Although the legislation provides for disposal at best 
consideration, the Government recognises that there may be circumstances where 
Local Authorities consider it appropriate to dispose of land at undervalue.  

 
1.5 This report only deals with Section123 consents to dispose of property assets at less 

than best consideration.  Other specific consents / processes may be required for 
disposal of property assets held for particular purposes (e.g. schools, allotments, 
public open space, charitable land etc) or disposals at less than best consideration for 
particular purposes (e.g. for privately let housing accommodation). 

 
2. Current Position 
 
2.1 The General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 came into force on 1 September 2003 

and permits Local Authorities to dispose of land and property assets at less than best 
consideration without obtaining the specific approval of the Secretary of State up to a 
limit of £2 million undervalue.  A disposal for a peppercorn in exchange for economic, 
environmental and social  benefits e.g. housing nomination rights, public realm works 
outside the scope of Section 106 (Planning Gain) etc is a disposal at undervalue, 
these will be subject to the appraisal process set out in paragraphs 5.1 to 5.4 below, 
should Executive approve this report. 

 
2.2 The revised General Disposal Consent grants Local Authorities the ability to dispose 

of property assets at up to £2 million undervalue per transaction where the disposing 
Authority considers the disposal will contribute to the achievement or promotion or 
improvement of the economic, social or environmental well being of the whole or part 
of the area or all or any persons residing in the area. 

 
2.3 There are two possible outcomes of disposal at undervalue: 
 

a) the Council can take a reduced capital receipt of up to £2 million in order to 
obtain economic, social or environmental benefits;  

 
or, 

 
b) forego the capital receipt where the best consideration is less than £2 million. 

Page 70



2.4 In order to determine the level of undervalue, formal valuations will be required of the 
best consideration and the level of undervalue, taking account of the specific benefits 
the Council is obtaining. 

 
 Legal advice should be obtained about whether the proposal falls within the terms of 

the General Disposal Consent. 
 
2.5 The Consent and Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (OPDM) Guidance on the well 

being powers state that Authorities should have regard to their Community Strategy 
and, whilst a proposal need not necessarily be specifically referred to in the Strategy, 
the Government would expect Authorities to consider the matter very carefully before 
using the power in a way which may be counter to the aims and objectives in its 
Community Strategy. 

 
2.6 Authorities must be able to demonstrate that they have acted reasonably in agreeing 

undervalue transactions.  It is unlikely that aggrieved unsuccessful or potential 
purchasers (or indeed local residents) will accept the decision in all cases.  A 
fundamental issue will be authority’s ability to demonstrate reasonableness having 
regard to applicable policies. 

 
3. Balanced Scorecard Context 
 
3.1 The receipts generated from the disposals of assets provide substantial sums (at 30 

November 2004 the total Disposal Programme identifies potential capital receipts of 
£85 million to be obtained by 31 March 2007).  The receipts will support the delivery 
of many of the Council’s aims and objectives.  The Disposal Programme, with one 
exception, assumes all assets are sold at market value.  The exception is Digby 
Gardens; which is being sold at undervalue in order to retain 100% of the nomination 
rights.  (Executive Minute 75, 3 August 2004 approved this disposal.) 

 
3.2 One of the key priorities is to ensure sound financial management.  A critical element 

of this is to obtain best value from the disposal of the Council’s surplus assets in order 
to sustain the delivery of key services.  Consequently, where any sale at undervalue 
is recommended it would be necessary to demonstrate that the outcome will be at 
least as beneficial as the opportunities forgone by agreeing a reduced receipt. 

 
3.3 In LBBD sales of land and property at undervalue have only taken place in 

exceptional circumstances and it is not envisaged that the change in legislation will 
alter this.  However, it is proposed that clear guidelines are prepared which sets out 
the information requirement for the consideration of such requests in the future. 

 
4. State Aid 
 
 All disposals need to comply with the European Commissions State Aid Rules.  When 

disposing of land at less than best consideration, Authorities are providing a subsidy 
to the owner, developer and / or occupier of the land.  Where this occurs, Authorities 
must ensure that the nature and amount of the subsidy complies with the State Aid 
Rules.  Failure to do so means the Aid is unlawful. 

 

Page 71



5. Proposals 
 

5.1 It is recommended that sales at less than best consideration be approved by the 
Executive.  It is recommended that any proposals to sell at undervalue (whether or 
not the Secretary of State’s consent may be required) should be considered initially 
by the Corporate Asset Management Group as an appraisal panel.  The 
recommendations and reasons will be reported to the Executive when seeking the 
necessary consent for disposal of a particular property at undervalue. 
 

5.2 The proposals submitted to the Corporate Asset Management Group should be 
supported by the following information:- 

 
(i) A valuation report undertaken by a valuer who is a member of the RICS 

setting out the restricted and unrestricted values of the property. 
 

(ii) A proposal by the sponsor of the capital value of the proposal to the Council 
and those benefits of the proposal which are capable of monetary 
assessment (e.g. operational savings, income generation, levering in 
additional financial resources etc) together with an assessment with 
supporting evidence of the value of non- monetary benefits (crime reduction, 
health improvements, social benefits to the community). 
 

(iii) A statement from the Sponsor showing how the disposal at Undervalue will 
contribute to agreed Council and Community Priorities and will not adversely 
affect other priorities and a clear statement showing where and how the 
scheme fits within service priorities (as they may be required to cover the 
shortfall of the receipt from their own capital funds). 
 

(iv) a clear statement from the Sponsor that the benefits can not be achieved 
unless the scheme proceeds at undervalue and confirm that no alternative 
means of funding is available. 
 

(v) Any views expressed by the Local Area Community Forum. 
 
(vi) Confirmation from the Head of Legal Services that the proposal falls within 

the terms of the revised General Disposal Consent. 
 

(vii) A financial assessment of the impact of disposing of the asset on both the 
existing Capital Programme and the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. 
 

5.3 The Sponsor following consultation with the Corporate Asset Management Group 
would firstly refer the matter to the Regeneration Board and subsequently the 
Executive for a decision. 
 

Page 72



5.4 The Corporate Asset Management Group need to be aware of the implications of the 
Council obtaining Section 106 Agreement benefits, via terms in a contract to dispose, 
should the Council decide to use this option.  The benefits will need to be identified 
and quantified, possible during the appraisal by the Corporate Asset Management 
Group. 

 
6. Consultation 

 
Lead Members: 
The following have been advised of the proposals: 
 
Leaders Portfolio (Community Plan and Vision), Councillor Fairbrass. 
Deputy Leader’s Portfolio (Property Services), Councillor Geddes. 
Regeneration, Councillor Kallar. 

 
 The following have seen a copy of this report and have raised no objections: 

 
Corporate Strategy 
Muhammad Saleem, Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer 
Jennie Duffy, Head of Customer First 
 
Regeneration and Environment 
Jeremy Grint, Head of Regeneration Implementation 
Jim Mack, Head of Asset Management and Development 
 
Finance 
Lee Russell, Head of Capital Finance 
David Waller, Interim Head of Finance (DRE) 
Laura Williams 
 
Social Services   
Andy Bere 
 
Housing and Health 
Ken Jones 
 
DEAL 
Mike Freeman 
 
Regeneration Board, 25 January 2005. 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers 

• Executive Minute 75, 3 August 2004 re: Land Disposal Sites: Land Valuation for Site at 
Digby Gardens 

• Executive Minute 53, 20 July 2004 re: Council Land and Asset Disposals - Funding 
New Affordable Housing and Regeneration Initiatives. 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 12

Page 85

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 15

Page 91

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 16

Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 17

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 18

Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 19

Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank


